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WeP Solutions Limited

CIN No. L72200KA1995PLC025617
Regd. Office : 40/1 A, Basappa Complex, Lavelle Road, Bangalore - 560 001

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twentieth Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company will be held
on Thursday, 27th August, 2015 at Rotary Club, Lavelle Road, Bangalore - 560 001 at 4.00 PM to transact the
followingbusinesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive,considerandadopttheAudited Balance Sheet asat 31st March, 2015, the Statement of Profitand Loss
and Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the year ended, together with the Directors’ Report and Auditor’s
Reportthereon ascirculated to the Shareholders.

2. Todeclareadividend on Equity Sharesforthe Financial Year2014-15.

3. ToappointDr.ALRao,whoretires by rotation and beingeligible, offers himselffor re-appointment.

4. To ratify the appointment of Statutory Auditors to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting until the

conclusion of next Annual General Meeting and to fix their remuneration and pass with or without
modification(s), the followingresolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142(1) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
CompaniesAct, 2013, read with the rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time, the appointment of
M/s N.M. Raiji & Co, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration No. 108296W), as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company be and is hereby ratified by the members of the Company from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting on such remuneration as may be
mutually determined between the Board of Directors of the Company and the said Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. Appointmentof Shankar Jaganathan (DIN 02121024) as an Independent Director:

To Consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in
force) and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, Shankar Jaganathan (DIN 02121024) Director of the Company who
has completed term of five years and has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of independence
under Section 149(6) of the CompaniesAct,2013 and who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the
Company hasreceived a notice in writing from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be
and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, who shall hold the office for a term of
5yearsupto27th August, 2020 and whose term shallnot be subject to retirement by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all such
acts,deeds, matters, things as may be deemedfit for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Company Secretary or the Chief Financial Officer or any one of the Director be and
hereby authorized to file the necessary e-forms with the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka / Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.”

6. Toapprovetheremunerationofthe Cost Auditorforthe Financial Year2015-16:

To Consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to
M/s Rao, Murthy and Associates, Cost Accountants, Bangalore (Firm Registration No. 000065), appointed by the
Board of Directors of the Company to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the Financial Year
2015-16, at a remuneration amounting to Rs. 1,50,000 (Rupees One Lakh Fifty Thousand Only) per annum plus




7.

8.

service tax as applicable and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred by them in connection of the
aforesaid audit, as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company, beandis herebyratified and confirmed.”

Appointment of Prashee Agrawal (DIN: 03420048) as Non - Executive (Non - Independent) Director:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and Clause 49 of Listing
Agreement, Prashee Agarwal (DIN: 03420048) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an Additional
Director of the Company with effect from 18th May, 2015 and who holds office upto the date of the 20th Annual
General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of
Association of the Company and in respect of whom the Company hasreceived a notice in writing from a Member
under Section 160 of the said Act proposing her candidature for the office of Non- Executive (Non-Independent)
Director of the Company, subject to retirement by rotation be and is hereby appointed as Non- Executive
(Non-Independent) Director ofthe Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all such
acts, deeds, matters, things as may be deemed fit for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Company Secretary or the Chief Financial Officer or any one of the Director be and
hereby authorized to file the necessary e-forms with the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka/Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.”

Appointment of Ram N Agarwal (DIN: 00006399) as Managing Director:

To approve appointment of Ram N Agarwal (DIN: 00006399) as a Managing Director designated as Chairman and
Managing Director and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the
followingresolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) thereof, for the time being in force)
and Clauses of Articles of Association of the Company, Ram N Agarwal, be and is hereby appointed as the
Managing Director of the Company for a period of three years with effect from 16th February, 2015 on such terms
and conditions as set out in the Statement annexed to the notice convening this meeting, with the liberty given
to the Board of Directors to alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment and/or
remuneration in such manner as may be agreed to by and between the Company and Ram N Agarwal provided
however, such alterations are within the maximum limits laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 for the time
beinginforce.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all such
acts,deeds, matters, things as may be deemed fit for the purpose of giving effect to the above resolution.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Company Secretary or the Chief Financial Officer or any one of the Director be and
hereby authorized to file the necessary e-forms with the Registrar of Companies, Karnataka / Ministry of
Corporate Affairs.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For WeP Solutions Limited

Place : Bangalore Sujata Arvind Lele
Date : 25th July, 2015 Company Secretary

Registered Address: 40/1 ABasappa Complex, Lavelle Road, Bangalore 560001



NOTES:

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the special
businessisannexed hereto.

Amemberentitled to attend and voteis entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself/herself
and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument of proxy in order to be effective, must be
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed not less than 48 hours before the
meeting.

Apersoncanactasa proxy onbehalf of members not exceedingfifty and holdingin the aggregate not more than
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy
and such personshallnotactas a proxy forany other person orshareholder.

The register of members and the share transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from
21stAugust,2015to27th August,2015 (both daysinclusive).

Dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2015, and if approved at
Annual General Meeting, will be payable to those eligible members whose names stand in the Register of
Members/ Register of Beneficial holders of shares as the case may be for shares held in physical and electronic
(Demat) form respectively, asonthe date of Book Closurei.e 21st August, 2015

A Shareholder desirous of getting any information on the accounts or operations of the Company is requested
toforward hisrequest to the company at least 10 days prior to the meeting so that the required information can
be made available atthe Meeting.

Corporate membersintending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to
send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and
voteontheirbehalfatthe Meeting.

Shareholders are requested to intimate immediately, any change in their address or bank mandates to their
depository participants with whom they are maintaining their DEMAT accounts or to the Company’s Share
Transfer AgentM/s Cameo Corporate Services Limited, Chennaiif the shares are held by themin physical form.

For the convenience of members and for proper conduct of the meeting, entry to the place of meeting will be
regulated by attendance slip, whichis a part of this Notice. Members are requested to sign at the place provided
ontheattendanceslipandhanditoveratthe entrance of thevenue.

Shareholders are requested to kindly bring their copy of the Annual Report with them at the Annual General
Meeting as no extra copy of the Annual Report would be made available atthe Annual General Meeting.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are open for inspection by the
members atthe Registered Office of the Company on allworking days, except Saturdays, during business hours
up tothe date of the Meeting.

Consequent upon the introduction of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, shareholders are entitled to make
anominationinrespect of sharesheld by themin physical form. Shareholders desirous of making a nomination
arerequested to send theirrequestsin Form No. SH.13in duplicate (which will be made available on request) to
the Registrarand Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are,
therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their
DEMAT accounts. Members holding sharesin physical form can submit their PAN to the Company/ Registrar and
ShareTransfer Agent of the Company.

Memberswho have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail address for
receivingallcommunicationincluding Annual Report, Notices, Circulars etc. from the Company electronically.



14. Votingthrough electronic means:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended and Clause 35B of the Listing Agreement with Stock
Exchange, a member of the company holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, may
exercise hisrightto vote by electronic meansin respect of the resolution(s) contained in this notice.

The Company s pleased to provide members facility to exercise their votes at the 20th AGM by electronic means
through the e- voting services provided by Karvy Computershare Private Limited (KCPL) and the business may
betransacted through e-voting as perinstruction below:

(a) Dateandtime of commencementofvotingthrough electronic means:21stAugust,2015(9.00 AM)

(b) Date and time of the end of voting through electronic means beyond which voting will not be allowed:
26th August, 2015 (5.00 PM)
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iv.

vi.

Vil.

viii.

Xi.

Details of website : www.evoting.karvy.com

Forany further clarification contact our Toll Free No.: 1-800-34-54-001 or e-mail us at evoting@karvy.com

Details of Scrutinizer: Vinay BL, Practicing Company Secretary

Thelnstructions for e-voting are asunder:

Openyourweb browser duringthe voting period by typing the URL: https://evoting.karvy.com

Enterthelogin credentials which will be sentseparately by e-mail or post.
Afterentering these details appropriately, clickon “LOGIN™,

Members holding shares in Demat / Physical form will now reach Password Change menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily change their login password in the new password field. The new
password has to be minimum eight characters consisting of at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower
case (a-z), one numeric value (0-9) and a special character. Kindly note that this password can be
used by the Demat holders for voting for resolution of any other Company on which they are eligible
to vote, provided that Company opts for e-voting through Karvy Computershare Private Limited
e-Voting platform. System will prompt you to change your password and update any contact
details like mobile #, email ID etc on 1st login. You may also enter the Secret Question and answer of
your choice to retrieve your password in case you forget it. It is strongly recommended not to share
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

You needto loginagain with the new credentials.
Onsuccessfullogin, the system will promptyouto selectthe ‘Event Number’i.e.'Company Name’.

If you hold shares in demat form and you are already registered with Karvy Computershare Private
Limited and casted your vote earlier for any company, you shall use your existing User ID and
Password for castingyourvote.

On the voting page, you will see Resolution Description and against the same the option
‘FOR/AGAINST/ABSTAIN’ for voting .Enter the number of shares (which represents number of votes)
under ‘FOR/AGAINST/ABSTAIN’ or alternatively you may partially enter any number in ‘FOR’ and
partially in ‘AGAINST’, but the total number in ‘FOR/AGAINST’ taken together should not exceed your
total shareholding as on the cut-off date, as mentioned above. You may also choose the option
“ABSTAIN” in caseyou do not want to cast vote.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box
will be displayed .If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on
“CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

Onceyou ‘CONFIRM’ yourvote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify yourvote.

Corporate/Institutional Members (Corporate/Fls/Flls/Trust/Mutual Funds/Banks, etc) are required
to send scan (PDF format) of the relevant Board resolution to the Scrutinizer through e-mail to



vinay@vinaybl.com with copy to evoting@karvy.com and investor@wepsol.in, The file scanned
image of the Board Resolution should be in the naming format “Corporate Name.
EventName and EventNumber

xii.  Thee-votingmodule shall be disabled for voting on 26th August, 2015 at 5.00PM. Once the vote on a
resolutionis cast by the Shareholder, the Shareholder shall not be allowed to change subsequently.
The voting rights of the Shareholders shall be in proportion of their shares in the paid-up equity
share capital ofthe Company asonthe book closure date.

xiii.  Incaseofany queries,membermay contactthe company atinvestor@wepsol.in

xiv.  Vinay B L, Practicing Company Secretary has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-
voting processin afair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding
three (3) days from the conclusion of the e-voting period unblock the votes in the presence of at
leasttwo (2) witness notinthe employmentof the Company and make a Scrutinizer’s Report of the
votes cast in favor or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman. The results shall be declared on or
afterthe AGM.

xv.  Theresults declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website
www.wepsolutions.co.in and on the website of the Karvy Computershare Private Limited
www.evoting.karvy.com within two days of the AGM of the Company and communicated to the BSE,
wheretheshares ofthe Company are listed.

Il.  Facility formembers not having access to electronic voting

i. Asprovided in Clause 35B of Listing agreement, to enable those members who may not have access to
electronic voting facility to exercise their vote, a physical ballot form is being sent along with the Notice of
Annual General Meeting.

ii. In case member opts for voting through postal ballot, They can fill in the details as per Form MGT 12
enclosed along with this notice and send the same in the Pre-paid Business Reply Envelop enclosed along
with the Annual Report.

iii. The Scrutinizer will collate the votes downloaded from the e-voting system and votes received through
Physical Ballot to declare the results of the resolutions forming part of Notice of the Annual General
Meeting.

iv. Amembercanoptforonly one mode ofvoting,i.e. either by physical ballot or postal ballot or by electronic
voting.In case member casting votesin all modes, the votes made through electronicvoting shall prevail.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the CompaniesAct,2013
ItemNo.5

Shankar Jaganathanis a Chartered Accountant and Law Graduate. He has varied experience in Corporate, Academic
and Social Sectors. He worked with Wipro Limited for 18 years. He is currently practicing as a Management
Consultantand focused inresearch, writing and teaching.

Shankar Jaganathan is the Independent Director of the Company and have held the positions as such for 5 (five)
years.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has amended Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement inter alia
stipulating the conditions forthe appointment of Independent Directors by a Listed Company.

Itis proposed to appoint Shankar Jaganathan as an Independent Director under Section 149 of the Act and Clause 49
of the Listing Agreement to hold office for 5 (Five) consecutive years upto 27th August, 2020 and whose term shall not
be subjecttoretirement by rotation.

Shankar Jaganathan is not disqualified from being appointed as Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has
given his consentto actas Director.

The Company hasreceived declaration from Shankar Jaganathan that he meets with the criteria ofindependence as
prescribed both under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.



In the opinion of the Board, Shankar Jaganathan fulfill the conditions for appointment as Independent Directors as
specifiedinthe Actand the Listing Agreement. Shankar Jaganathanisindependent of the management.

Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment are provided herewith:

Date of Birth 21st August, 1960
Date of Appointment 8th May, 2010
Qualification Chartered Accountant and Law Graduate

1. Right Horizons Financial Services Private Limited - Independent
Director.

2. Cimplyfive Corporate Secretarial Services Private Limited - Director
and CEO.

List of other directorships and position held

Chairman/Member of the committee of the

Board of Directors of other Public Company NIL

Shareholding in the Company 2,228 Shares

Copy of the draft letter for re-appointing Shankar Jaganathan as Independent Director setting out the terms and
conditions are available forinspection by members at the Registered Office of the Company.

This Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock
Exchange.

Shankar Jaganathan is interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice with regard to his respective
appointment.

The relatives of Shankar Jaganathan may be deemed to be interested in the resolution set out at Item No.5 of the
Notice, to the extent of their shareholdinginterest, if any, inthe Company.

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives
are,inanyway, concerned orinterested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

Your Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval by the
Shareholders.

ItemNo.6

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment
of M/s Rao, Murthy and Associates, Cost Accountants, Bangalore, to conduct the audit of cost records of the
Company for the Financial Year 2015-16 at a remuneration amounting to Rs. 1,50,000 (Rupees One Lakh Fifty
Thousand Only) per annum plus service tax as applicable and reimbursement of out of pocket expensesincurred by
themin connection of the aforesaid audit, subject to ratification by Shareholders.

In terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(a)(ii) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014,the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is to be ratified by the Members of the
Company. Accordingly the Members are requested to ratify the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the
FinancialYear2015-16 assetoutintheresolution forthe aforesaid servicesto be rendered by them.

Save and except the above, none of the Director / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in
anyway, concerned orinterested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

Your Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice for approval by the
Shareholders.

ItemNo. 7

The Board of Directors have appointed Prashee Agarwal as Additional Director of the Company w.e.f 18th May, 2015.
As per the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act,2013, Prashee Agarwal shall hold office as an Additional
Director only upto the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company, and is eligible for being appointed as a
Non - Executive (Non - Independent) Director.



Prashee Agarwal completed her Bachelor of Engineering from Mysore, Post Graduate Diploma in
Telecommunications from Pune Institute of Advanced Technology, Pune and Master of Business Administration
from Xavier’s Institute of Business Management, Bhubaneshwar. She has extensive functional consulting experience
with the implementation and maintenance of Oracle 11i Financials at various client locations across industry
verticals. She has also worked with Business Users and Technical Team Members through various stages of the
Implementation and SupportLife Cycle.

Details of Director seeking appointment/re-appointment are provided herewith:

Date of Birth 4th May, 1974

Date of Appointment 18th May, 2015

Bachelor of Engineering, Post Graduate Diploma in

ualification Lo . L. .
Q Telecommunications and Master of Business Administration.

List of other directorships and position held [NIL

Chairman/Member of the committee of the

. . NIL
Board of Directors of other Public Company

Shareholding in the Company 5,181 Shares

Copy of the draft letter for appointing Prashee Agarwal as a Non-Executive (Non-Independent) Director setting out
thetermsand conditions are available forinspection by members at the Registered Office of the Company.

Save and except Prashee Agarwal and her relatives, except Ram N Agarwal, none of the other Directors / Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise,intheresolution setoutatltemNo.7

The Board recommendsthe Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice for approval by the Shareholders.
ItemNo. 8

Ram N Agarwal completed B.Tech from IIT Kanpur and in 1972 he completed PGDM from 1IM, Kolkata, specializing in
Finance, Marketing and Systems. Ram N Agarwal pioneered to create India's first employee owned company Wipro
e-Peripherals in 2000. He led an employee buy-out of IT Peripherals business from Wipro. During his tenure of
23 years at Wipro, he led multiple business units and functional areas. He led many of Wipro’s initiatives in Brand
Building, Innovation and Six Sigma. He also seeded Wipro’s software business during its early stages and was
responsible for many Technical Collaboration Agreements. He has been an Executive Council Member of
Manufacturing Association of Information Technology, an IT Product Promotion bodyin India.

Ram N Agarwal will attain the age of 70 years on 31st October, 2016 and hence continuation of his employment as
Managing Director requires the approval of members by way of a Special Resolution. Section 196(3) of the
Companies Act,2013 inter-alia provides that no company shall continue the employment of a person who has
attained the age of 70 years, as Managing Director, Whole-Time Director or Manager unless it is approved by the
members by passing a Special Resolution. Part1of Schedule Vto the Act contains asimilar relaxation.

Keeping in view that Ram N Agarwal has rich and varied experience in the industry and has been involved in the
operations of the Company over a long period of time; it would be in the interest of the Company to appoint
Ram N Agarwal as Managing Director.

Pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination and Compensation Committee, the Board of Directors of the
Company passed a resolution on 14th February, 2015 approving appointment of Ram N Agarwal as Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company for a period of three years with effect from 16th February, 2015. This is subject to
approval ofthe Shareholders at this Annual General Meeting.

The explanatory statement may also be read and treated as disclosure in compliance with the requirements of
Section 190 of the Companies Act2013.



The details of remuneration payable to Ram N Agarwal and the terms and conditions of appointment are as
mentioned below:

i. Fixed Remuneration: NIL
ii.  ProfitLinked Commission:

a. 5% of the Annual Net Profit as per the provisions and calculations mentioned in Section 197 of the
CompaniesAct,2013.

b. Profit Linked Commission shall be payable Quarterly after approval of Quarterly Accounts by the Board of
Directors.

¢. Incaseofloss,nocommissionshall be payable forthat Quarter.

Details of Director seeking appointment/re-appointment are provided herewith:

Date of Birth 31st October,1946
Date of Appointment 16th February, 2015
Qualification B.Tech from IIT Kanpur and PGDM from IIM, Kolkata.

1. WeP Peripherals Limited - Managing Director
. wep solutions india limited - Director
3. EPeripherals Trading Limited - Director
4. RNAWEP Investment Private Limited - Director

List of other directorships and position held

Chairman/Member of the committee of the

. . NIL
Board of Directors of other Public Company

Shareholding in the Company 32,05,056 Shares

Ram N Agarwal satisfies all the conditions set out in Part | of Schedule V and Section 196(3) of the Companies Act,
2013 for being eligible for his appointment as Managing Director. He is not disqualified from being appointed as
Directorinterms of Section 164 of the Act.

Copy of the draft letter for appointing Ram N Agarwal as Managing Director setting out the terms and conditions are
available forinspection by members at the Registered Office of the Company.

Save and except Ram N Agarwal and his relatives, except Prashee Agarwal, none of the other Directors / Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, intheresolutionsetoutatltemNo.8

Your Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at ltem No. 8 of the Notice for approval by the Shareholders.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For WeP Solutions Limited

Place : Bangalore Sujata Arvind Lele
Date : 25th July, 2015 Company Secretary



WeP Solutions Limited

CIN No. L72200KA1995PLC025617
Regd. Office : 40/1 A, Basappa Complex, Lavelle Road, Bangalore - 560 001

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(20th Annual General Meeting scheduled on Thursday, 27th August 2015)
| am a member/proxy for the member of the company. | hereby record my presence at the 20th Annual General

Meeting of the Company held on Thursday, 27th August 2015 at Rotary Club, Lavelle Road,
Bangalore-560001at 4.00 PM

Full Name of the Member (In Block Letters)

FolioNo./DPID/ClientID

No of Shares held

Name of the Proxy (In Block Letters)

WeP Solutions Limited

CIN No. L72200KA1995PLC025617
Regd. Office : 40/1 A, Basappa Complex, Lavelle Road, Bangalore - 560 001

PROXY FORM - MGT 11

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules,2014]

Name of the Member (s)

Registered Address
E-mailID
FolioNo/ClientID
DPID

I/We, Being the member(s) Of, c..cooveieieiririeieereseee et Shares of WeP Solutions Limited,
hereby appoint

Lo NaMEi e E-mailld: e
AGAIESS: vttt ettt sttt ettt b ettt s e bt e bbb et h e bt b s b et et e Rt e bbb et e Rt e at bt e b e b et e Rt en e e bt ebe st e bententeneeben
.................................................................................................. SIgNATUIE: .ottt
orfailing him

2. NAME! ittt E-mailld: e
AAIESS: .ttt ettt s b ettt e b e bbbt b e s bR bbbt b e e b e e e e bt bt s b et et e e e st ereenes
.................................................................................................. SIgNATUIE: .t
orfailing him

30 NAME! e E-mailld: .o
ALAIESS: .ttt ettt ettt ettt b et b e bbb bttt s et e st se et bt be e ebe e

.................................................................................................. SINAtUre: .o

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 20th Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held on Thursday 27th August, 2015 at 4.00 PM at Rotary Club, Lavelle Road, Bangalore-
560001 and /or atany adjournmentthereofinrespect of suchresolutions asareindicated below:



Resolution Resolution Votes

No. For Against

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at
31stMarch, 2015, the Statement of Profitand Loss and Cash Flow Statement
of the Company for the year ended, together with the Directors’ Report and
Auditor’s Reportthereon ascirculated to the shareholders.

2. Todeclaredividend on Equity Shares forthe Financial Year2014-15
3. To appoint Dr. A L Rao, who retires by rotation at this meeting and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.
4, Ratification of the appointment of Statutory Auditors.
Special Business
5. Appointment of Shankar Jaganathan (DIN: 02121024) as an Independent
Director.
6. To approve the remuneration of the Cost Auditor for the Financial Year
2015-16.
7. Appointment of Prashee Agarwal (DIN: 03420048) as Non-Executive
(Non Independent) Director
8. Appointment of Ram N Agarwal (DIN: 00006399) as Managing Director.
Aswitness my/ourhand(s),this.......ccccecerirvercenennne dayof....ccvenennne. 2015.
Signature of Shareholder: ..o Affix
Signature 0f Proxy NoLAEr(S): ...erueueurereererrieeieieeee et Revenue
Stamp

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not
less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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POLLING PAPER / BALLOT PAPER

[Pursuant to Section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name

of the Company: WeP Solutions Limited

Registered office: 40/1A, Basappa Complex, Lavelle Road, Bangalore - 560 001

Sl. No Particulars Details
Name of the First Named Shareholder (In block letters)
2. Postaladdress
3. Registered Folio No. / *Client ID No.
(*Applicable to investors holding shares in dematerialized form)
4. | Class of Share

| hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary / Special Resolution enumerated below by recording my assent or
dissenttothesaidresolutioninthefollowingmanner:

Sl. No. Item No. No. of Shares | | assenttothe | Idissentfrom
held by me resolution the resolution
Ordinary Business:
1. | Toreceive, considerand adopt the Audited Balance

Sheet as at 31st March 2015, the Statement of Profit
and Loss and Cash Flow Statement of the Company
for the year ended, together with the Directors’
Report and Auditor’s Report thereon as circulated
totheshareholders.

2. | To declare dividend on Equity Share for the
FinancialYear2014-15.

3. | ToappointDr.ALRao, who retires by rotation at this
meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

4. | Ratification of the appointment of Statutory
Auditors.

Special Business:

5. | Appointment of Shankar Jaganathan (DIN:
02121024) asan Independent Director.

6. | Toapprovethe remuneration of the CostAuditor for
theFinancial Year2015-16.

7. |Appointment of Prashee Agarwal (DIN:
03420048) as Non-Executive (Non-Independent)
Director

8. | Appointment of Ram N Agarwal (DIN: 00006399) as
Managing Director.

Place:
Date: (Signature of the Shareholder)
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Letter to the Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,
Theyear gone by

The year 2014-15 has been a momentous year for India. The year started with a historic political change wherein first time
in Indian political history, a single political party (non-congress) acquired majority in Lok Sabha. This augured well for
political stability and set a platform for many bold economic changes including ‘ease of doing business’in India. Tosaythe
least, doing Business in India, is painful for companies whose hardware products are ‘made in India’ Thisis due to several
non optimal, non understandable complex regulations from multiple requlating authorities. We hope, major reforms and
changeswill be brought in for ‘ease of doing business’ particularly for ‘small businesses’who need speed and efficiency.

Economy continued to improve as inflation was controlled, liquidity conditions were eased. However, most Indian
companies continued to face economic challenges due to prevalent economic and industrial environment. Market
expectation of high growth with profitability were proved to be misplaced as quarter 4 results of many corporates indicate.
It was a difficult year for IT Products Industry as demand for personal computers and printers remained stagnant. These
challenges forced many IT hardware company to restructure their business. Your company continued to recalibrate its
business path and remained focused on its high growth Managed Printing Solution (MPS) business and Application
Specific Printing (ASP) business. Company degrew in its traditional Impact Printer business. Growth in MPS business and
Retail Business Products business could not compensate the degrowth in the traditional Impact Printer Business resulting
indegrowthin oursales and profits.

During the year 2013-14, we were awarded a sales contract to connect our unique ASP solution to VVPAT (A device which
connects to Electronic Voting Machines (EVMs). The VVPAT solutions got tested in about 10,000 booths in May 2014
Lokasabha elections. This VVPAT solutions got retested during assembly elections after Lok Sabha Election of 2014. The
success of this solution is a matter of pride for your company. This business also offers a sizeable business opportunity. We
expectthat we will get benefitted in the years to come for our pioneering efforts.

Looking ahead:

Honourable Prime Minister has announced many programs that will boost the economy in general, and our
sector/company in particular. Programs which will directly benefit us are ‘Digital India’ and ‘Make in India’ Another big
push forIT Digital Products & Services will come for increasing use of Aadhaar and with Financial inclusion. Rapid progress
has been made by Government of India at all these fronts. We are seeing cumulative effect of all these infrastructural
initiatives in growth of MPS Business, higher demand for Document Management Solutions (DMS) business towards
compliances and management. Internal assessment shows that DMS business is more than 4000 millions documents even
in select vertical industries and in RBP business India has more than 12 million small business outlets waiting to be
digitized.

Pioneering developmental efforts/investments are being made by us in providing unique e-Commerce and financial
inclusion solutions. These efforts and investments combined with huge emerging digital opportunities will provide the
company significant growth prospects in the years ahead. We remain committed to provide “Tech Fantasy” to our
customers and returnsto our shareholders in addition to providing excitementto ouremployees.

Ithank all my dear shareholders for your continued support. | take this opportunity to place on record my sincere gratitude
to our Bankers, regulatory bodies like SEBI, BSE and all others for their support. | also wish to express my appreciation to
my colleagues on the Board and our employees for their leadership, dedication and commitment. | thank everyone for
theircooperation andtrustreposedinus.

With BestRegards,

bt —

-_ !
RamNAgarwal

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15 WeP Solutions Limited
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Performance at a Glance
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Business Overview
WeP Managed Printing Solutions (MPS)

Managed Printing Solutions (MPS) focuses on providing complete management of printing, copying and
scanning of the documents for an organization. It includes assessment and understanding of the printing
environment of the customer and manages the upkeep of printers, consumables and spares as and when
required. Organizations today spend 1 to 3 percent of their revenue on print related costs. Actively managing
overall printing efforts, they can reduce recurring spending on document output by 10 to 30 percent.

WeP MPS Solutions

» AssetPlus Solutionsand Services (APSS):
WeP provides end to end solution for managing customer print requirements. WeP deploys hardware,
software, consultancy, services onsite at customer premises and offer these services under pay as you use
model.

» FullService Solutions (FSS):
Customers today might have already invested on the print infrastructure but struggle to manage it on their
own. WeP comes to rescue and offer services to manage customer’s existing print fleet. It gives customer
peace of mind and also benefits to get the maximum return on the investment.

« BulkPrinting Solutions (BPS):
Customerswould have peak print requirements. Itis not required to build the infrastructure for one time print
requirements. WeP offers to build the infrastructure onsite or offsite for customers to complete the job.

Customers today are conscious about the data security in their organizations. Documents left at the printer are a
security risk, a costly expense and an environmental concern. WeP provides various secure print options to its
customersto safe guard their data from misuse.

For organizations who want to eliminate stacks of unclaimed print jobs left at printers and increase document
security, WeP provides a secure print service that is easy to install and use with no print queue modifications
required.

Secure print options allows your users to release their print jobs at any device with their smartphone or a
web-enabled computer.

Features and benefits of secure print:

« Centralized PrintManager &Print Monitor

e PrinterUsage Tracking/Print Counting

» Printer Counter/Toner Level

« PrintNotification and Authentication (by PIN)

e UsingProjectCode/ClientCode/Job Code

WeP Color Printing: Now Easier and More Accessible than Ever

For many businesses, cost and convenience have in the past been major deterrents to color printing. But in this
age when color matters more than ever before, the good news is that it is also more accessible and affordable.
WeP is making quality in house color printing easier than ever with printers and multifunction devices that
provide outstanding and affordable color that help you make an impact to your customers and easily control
costs.
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Document Management Solutions (DMS)

WePisapioneerand an early starterin the Managed Printing Solutions space and now WeP is moving up the value
chain by managing the entire life cycle of the documents for its customers. WeP has launched unique Document
Management Solutions forits customers.

WeP has started a unique offering DMS, for its customers whichisin line with its values of providing “tech-fantasy”
products and solutions. Document Management Solution (DMS) is unique in the sense that it is one of its kind
solutions which makes customer documents compliant with Indian IT Act 2000 and complies with
1SO 19005-1:2005

WeP DMS not only helps its customers become compliant under GCM (Governance & Compliance Management)
framework, butalsoincreasesthe efficiency and productivity of the organizations by managing the documents.

Our solutions are based on open source platform which promotes the idea of “Digital India” launched by our
Prime Minister Shri. Narendra Modi

WeP DMS tries to handle the threat of “Digital Dark Age” Digital Dark Age refers to the loss of all important and
business critical information lying in the form of documents due to rapid technological changes. WeP DMS has
solutions which will help customers overcome this threat.

WeP DMS Features:

1. Business Continuity: People move from organizations, but organization stays, hence it is critical for an
Organizationto haveits record in safe custody.

2. Legal hold for the e-documents: WeP provide its customers with legal hold of the scanned documents as
per the Indian Information Technology Act 2000. The documents on legal hold can be produced in the court
oflawasanevidence.

3. Openability for life of e-document in a royalty free manner: The document will be openable for life,
independentoftechnological obscelence because of the PDF/A, an ISO format.

4. Open source Software used as Repository: Ownership of documents remains with the customer as
comparedto licensed software.

5.  World standards of Archiving: The solution provided by usis as perthe S0 19005:1-2005 whichis PDF/A.

6. Future Proofing Strategy: It fulfills the intent of long term preservation and the organizations have a
complete track and control of their Business Critical Records and helps overcome the danger of “Digital Dark
Age”.

7. Traceability: The electronic record can itself contain the information of its physical presence; this will help
gettingtherightfileinalesserduration oftime.

8. Digital Repository of Records: This helpsto create a digital back up of the business critical physical records,
this will also become the mirrorimage of the physical records with the same legal validity as that of physical
records.
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UNIFIED GOVERNANCE

Information Governance
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WeP has developed DMS specific to Pharmaceutical, Healthcare, HR records, Engineering & Maintenance records
forAirlines, Audit Records and Company Records.

Pharmaceutical Vertical: This is one of the most regulated sectors. There are various kinds of documents
generated by the Pharmaceutical Companies like SOP’S, Dossiers, BMR, BPR etc. These documents have to be
preserved for a long period of time as per compliance terms set by agencies across the globe like the US-FDA and
also for GMP practices followed by the Pharmaceutical Companies.

The Pharmaceutical companies face audits throughout the year, for this as it is a part of data integrity to be
maintained by Pharmaceutical Companies.

The Regulatory Bodies also advocate having this documents Digitized in the PDF/Aformat.

WeP’s offering is in line with the regulatory agencies directive of digitization and this will help Pharmaceutical
companiestobe compliantand efficientin a cost effective manner.

HR Records Digitization: HR Department has to maintain the records of each and every employee of an
organization, the longer the employee stays in an organization the bigger is his file and larger the number of
employees more difficult it is to organize the information. There are many important documents like the,
promotion letters, background check, resume, warning letters, training documents, bonds, contracts etc. that
has to be stored by the Department almost forever even after an employee leaves. Hence the HR has to be an
expert in Information Management so that they can keep a complete track of important documents of the
employeesso asto meet compliance as wellas also be efficient.

WeP’s offering has a solution to help HR department meet the compliance by having its Records in PDF/A mode to
meet compliance as well as beat the Digital Dark Age. WeP’s offering would make information handling for HR
Departmentefficientas well as cost effective without compromising on the Compliance.
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Audit Records Digitization: The Organizations have to go through multiple audits throughout the year.

The Financial records have to be preserved for a period of 8 years or sometimes forever. The bigger the
Organization, the more records it has to produce and preserve. Hence the need of digitization of records that too
with the same legal validity and authenticity is a real need for the finance department of an organization for a
smooth auditaswellasafull proof measure ofinternal compliance.

WeP’s offering has a solution to help Finance department meet the compliance by having its records in PDF/A
mode to meet compliance as well as beat the Digital Dark Age and also fulfills the regulations as set by the Indian
Information Technology Act 2000. WeP’s offering would make auditing of records efficient as well as cost effective
without compromising onthe Compliance.

Airlines Records Digitization: The Airline Industry generates a lot of documents, which are related to
Maintenance of Aircrafts, Engineering Documents, EXIM Documents, etc. These records have to be maintained by
the Airline Company for almost ever as the Regulatory Body may ask for it at any time as well as for the safety of
passengers who travel by their Flights. The regulatory bodies also advocate having documents digitized that
meetthe guidelinesand easy search and retrieval.

WeP’s unique offering will help the Airline Company to have better control of the records in an economical way
and also increase their operational efficiency while being compliant and sure of overcoming technological
obscelence through PDF/A.

Retail Printing Solutions

TheIndianretailindustry is one of the fastest growing markets in the world. India is the 5th largest preferred retail
destination globally. The sectoris experiencing exponential growth, with retail development taking place notjust
in major cities and metros, but also in Tier-Il and Tier-lll cities. Healthy economic growth, changing demographic
profile, increasing disposable incomes, changing consumer tastes and preferences are other factors driving
growth in the retail market in India. Increasing participation from foreign and private players has given a boost to
theretailinfrastructure.

India had the highest number of retail outlets in the world at over 13 million retail outlets in 2014. It also has the
highest number of outlets (11,903) per million inhabitants. The various major retail formats in India include
Departmental Stores, Hypermarkets, Supermarkets / Convenience Stores, Speciality Stores, Food & Grocery
Outletsand Cash &Carry Stores.

The organised sector retail outlets account for less than 15% of retail outlets. Thus unorganised retail outlets
offers immense opportunity for providing unique Indian technological Retail solution for unique Indian

The $500 billion
India’s Retail Market retail sector
Ph
HOW THE SECTOR IS DIVIDED I
Consumer v, Others
Electronics 9%
Sectors No. of Outlets 3% Y, °
Jewell
Food & Grocery 930,000 e 252, '\
Jewellery 675,000 R “ Food & Grocery
Pharma 750,000 5% 60%
’ Mobile 4
Textile and Apparels 1,650,000 and Telecg;}‘
Consumer Electronics and Telecom 675,000 Apparel &

8%
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requirements. In this sector Information Technology penetrationis currently lessthan 10% and is largely confined
to ‘Rich’ out lets. WeP hasinnovated and developed Retail Product Solution through anintegrated low cost device
category called ‘Retail Billing Printer’ (RBP). We are one of the few playersin the segment with a Product which is
developed and ‘madeinIndia’ InthisIndian product category, we lead the market with following strengths.

» LeadingMarket Share of 40% (from amongthe low end Indian Retail ‘POS’ market).
« StrongBrandvalueand acceptabilityinthe geographical market where we operate.
e Rangeof productsto addressvarious segmentsin the market.

- Onsitesupportsystem with morethan 100 service centers across India.

« Dedicated Sales, Marketingand R&D team.

« Strongchannelnetwork of morethan 100 sales partners.

During the coming years, we will maintain our momentum of growth by launching new products, investing in
salesand marketingand by increasing our geographical reach to cover more states and new channels of sales.

Printer Business

WeP Printer Business unit has 4 main products in its portfolio, Dot Matrix Printers, Line Matrix Printers, POS
printers and Laser Printers. Printer Business unit also sells consumables for these respective printers. WeP’s
product business in 2014-15 witnessed a resurgence with our Line Matrix Printer business which delivered a
growth overthe previousyeardueto large dealsin the banking sector. Line matrix printersended up as our largest
selling productin our portfolio. WeP dot matrix printers contributed 29% of our business with sales primarily from
banking, government, SMB and retail. Our consumables (after market) business contributed 23% of our business
with growth from our line matrix printer ribbons. POS printers contributed 10% of our product sales and grew
significantly more than the market growth rate. We introduced new range of Pantum laser printersin India as an
exclusivedistributor. We had our first corporate orders from the banking and manufacturing segments during the
year.

WeP’s customer base has traditionally been the banking, government, small and medium business (smb) and
manufacturing segments. These continue to comprise the 4 largest segments of our business in 2014-15. We had
some large deals from the banking space in line matrix printers which boosted the vertical for WeP. In the
government vertical, we also had a large project for line matrix printers. Our manufacturing client base continues
to give us regular business for our line matrix and dot matrix printers. The composition of our retail customersin
Printer Business Unit (PBU) increased to an increasingly significant 6% due to the growth of WeP POS printers.
This retail market will continue to grow in the coming quarters and years and we will cater to this market with our
WeP POS printers. Over last three years, we have de-grown in this segment. Considering these changes, our sales
arelikely to decline furtherin comingyearsin this segment of business.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15 WeP Solutions Himited 09



Directors’ Report

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Company’s 20th Annual Report on business and operations of the Company,
togetherwith the audited accounts forthefinancial yearended March 31,2015.

Financial Highlights

The highlights of the financial performance of the company are asfollows: (RinLakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2015 31st March 2014

Revenue from Operations 10,417.66 11,608.48
Other Income 53.22 101.81
Total Revenue 10,470.88 11,710.29
Profit Before Depreciation, Interest and Taxes 1,050.87 1,213.39
Finance Cost 176.70 204.41
Depreciation and Amortisation 650.37 726.83
Profit Before Tax 223.80 282.15
Provision for Tax 65.71 73.38
Profit /(loss) for the Year 158.09 208.77
Earnings Per Share (Equity Share par value Rs. 10/-each) 0.69 0.91
Basic / Diluted (Rs. Per Share)

Dividend and Reserves

During the year under review, your Directors wish to propose Dividend of 5% for the financial year 2014-15
(amounting to Re.0.50 (Fifty Paise) per equity share of Rs. 10/- each fully paid). The Board recommends same for
approvalofthe Shareholdersinthe ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Dividend will be paid to the members whose names appear in the register of members as on 21st August, 2015.
The due date for transfer of unpaid dividend to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) for last year is given in
the Corporate Governance Report. Shareholders who have not encashed their Dividend Warrants are requested to
havethemrevalidated and encashed to avoid transferto IEPF.

Duringtheyearunderreview,no amountwastransferred to General Reserve.

Material Changes and Commitments
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the end of
thefinancial statements to which thisfinancial statements relate on the date of this report.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings [ Outgo

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo
as required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules,2014isfurnishedin Annexure-1andis attached to thisreport.

Corporate Governance

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Bombay Stock Exchange, your company adheres to all the
Corporate Governance Code as prescribed by the Bombay Stock Exchange and Securities and Exchange Board of
India (SEBI). A detailed Corporate Governance Report forms part of this Annual Report. A certificate from Practicing
Company Secretary regarding Compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated by Clause 49 of
theListing Agreementis attached to thisreport.

10 WeP Solutions Limited
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Number of Meetings of the Board

The Board met five times during the Financial Year, the details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report
that forms part of this Annual Report. The intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period
prescribed by the CompaniesAct2013.

Extract of Annual Return
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT - 9, as required under Section 92(3) of the
CompaniesAct,2013isincludedinthisreportasAnnexure - Il and forms anintegral part of thisreport.

Credit Rating

During the year under review the Company has sustained its Long Term Credit Rating of BWR Triple B Minus (BWR
BBB-) (Stable). The moderate credit rating of Triple B Minus (BBB-) awarded by Brickwork Ratings India Private
Limited reflects the moderate degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial obligations. The Company’s
shortterm creditrated as BWR A3 by Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited, has also been reaffirmed.

Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives
Provisions relating to Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives are not applicable to your company. Hence your
company hasnotinitiated any actionthereon.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report
Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreementwith the Bombay Stock Exchange s presented in a separate section forming part of thisAnnual Report.

Subsidiary Company

As on 31st March 2015, company has no subsidiary/subsidiaries within the meaning of the Companies Act 2013.
Hence requirement of reporting the statement and other statutory financial statements of a subsidiary does not
arise. Furtherthere are no associate companies within the meaning of Section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”).

Public Deposit
The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act
2013 fortheyearended 31stMarch,2015.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) of Companies Act 2013 with respect to the Directors’
Responsibility Statement,itis hereby confirmed that:

a) Inthe preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year 2014-15, the applicable accounting standards
had beenfollowed and there are no material departures;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
attheendofthefinancialyearand of the profitand loss of the company for that period;

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and otherirregularities;

d) TheDirectorshad preparedthe annualaccountson agoingconcern basis;

e) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f)  The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
thatsuch systemswere adequate and operating effectively.
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Directors’ Report

Board of Directors
Company’s Policy relating to appointment/re-appointment of Directors, Payment of Managerial Remuneration,
Induction, Performance Evaluation and otherrelated matters are as mentioned below:

A.

12

Inductions

At the 19th Annual General Meeting held on 23rd September, 2014, Shareholders approved appointment of
Mythily Ramesh as an Independent Director on the Board. We thank the Shareholders for their support in
confirming Mythily Ramesh’s appointment atthe Annual General Meeting held on 23rd September, 2014.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of the
Company, Ram N Agarwal has been appointed as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company with effect
from 16th February, 2015 by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 14th February, 2015 on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Compensation Committee. A separate resolution seeking members
approval for confirmation of his appointment has been included in the Notice of the 20th Annual General
Meeting of the Company along with his brief profile.

Prashee Agarwal has been appointed as an Additional Director with effect from 18th May, 2015, based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Compensation Committee. Pursuant to Section 161(1) of the
Companies Act 2013, Prashee Agarwal will hold office upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) of
the Company and is eligible for appointment as Director. Board recommends her appointment and accordingly
resolution seeking approval of members for her appointmenthas beenincluded in the Notice of the 20th Annual
General Meeting of the Company along with her brief profile.

Re-appointment

Pursuant to Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013, one third of
such of the Directors as are liable to retire by rotation, shall retire every year and, if eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at every Annual General Meeting. Consequently Dr. AL Rao, Non Executive Director will retire by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act2013.

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013 provides for appointment of Independent Directors. Section 149(10) of
the Companies Act 2013 provides that Independent Directors shall hold office for a term of upto five consecutive
yearson the Board of aCompany and shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing resolution by shareholders
ofthe Company.

At the 19th Annual General Meeting held on 23rd September, 2014, company re-appointed H V Gowthama,
Sudhir Prakash and appointed Mythily Ramesh as Independent Directors. Shankar Jaganathan completes a
term of five consecutive years and it is proposed to re-appoint Shankar Jaganathan as an Independent Director
for a further term of five consecutive years, subject to approval of members at the 20th Annual General Meeting
ofthe Company.

Further, according to Section 149(11), no Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment for more than
two consecutive terms of five years. Section 149(13) states that the provisions of retirement by rotation as
definedinsection 152 (6) and (7) shall notapply to the Independent Directors.

The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they
meet the criteria of ‘Independence’ as prescribed both under Section 149(6) of Companies Act 2013 and under
Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement signed with the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE).
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C. Resignation
P K Gopalakrishnan, Managing Director, resigned from the services of the Company effective from
1st January, 2015. The Board places on record its appreciation for the services rendered by
P K Gopalakrishnan during histenure with the Company.

D. PerformanceEvaluationof Director
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, performance
evaluation of the Board, its Committees and individual Directors was conducted. A separate meeting of the
Independent Directors was convened, which reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole, the
Non-Independent Directors and the Chairman of the Company against the objectives set at the beginning of the
year.

E. CommitteesoftheBoard
During the year under review, the Board of Directors of your Company reconstituted the Committees of the
Board. The details of the powers, functions, composition and meetings of the Committees of the Board held
duringtheyeararegiveninthe Reporton Corporate Governance section forming part of thisAnnual Report.

F. IndependentDirectors’ Declaration
Independent Directors have submitted a declaration that each of them meets the criteria of independence as
provided in Section 149(6) and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. Further, there has been no change in the
circumstances which may affect their status asIndependent Director during the year under review.

Relationship between the Directors Inter-se

None of the Directors are related with each other within the meaning of the term “relative” as per Section 2(77) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 (VIII)(E)(2) of the revised Listing Agreement except Prashee Agarwal, whose
confirmation of appointment is sought. Prashee Agarwal is the daughter of Ram N Agarwal, Chairman and Managing
Directorofthe company.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments
Your company has not provided Loans, Guarantees and has not made any Investments under Section 186 of the
CompaniesAct2013duringthe Financial Year2014-15.

Statutory Auditors and their Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules framed thereunder,
M/s. N M Raiji & Co, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Registration Number: 108296W) were appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company in the 19th Annual General Meeting of the Company until the conclusion of
21st Annual General Meeting, subject to ratification of their appointment at every Annual General Meeting.
As required under the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act 2013, the company has obtained written
confirmation from M/s N M Raiji & Co, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai that their appointment, if made would be in
conformity with the limits specified in the said section.

The Observations of the Auditor, together with notes to accounts referred to in the Auditor’s Report are self
explanatory and do notcall any further explanation from the Directors.

CostAuditors

M/s.Rao, Murthy and Associates, Cost Accountants, Bangalore have been appointed as Cost Auditors for the Financial
Year 2015-16 by the Audit Committee to conduct Audit of Cost Accounting Records maintained by the Company, in
respect of various products/services as prescribed under Cost Audit Rules, 2011.

The Board of Directors, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has appointed M/s. Rao, Murthy and
Associates, Cost Accountants, Bangalore as the Cost Auditor to audit the Cost Accounts of the Company for the
Financial Year 2015-16 at a remuneration of Rs. 1,50,000/- plus service tax as applicable and reimbursement of out of

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15 WeP Solutions Limited 13



Directors’ Report

pocket expenses. As required under the Companies Act 2013, a resolution seeking member’s approval for the
remuneration payable forms part of the Notice conveningthe 20th Annual General Meeting.

The Cost Audit Report for the Financial Year 2014-15, in respect of the various products/services prescribed under
CostAuditRules, 2011 shall be filed with MCA as per the requirements of applicable laws.

Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to the provision of Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made there under, the Company has
appointed S Kannan, Practicing Company Secretary, Bangalore (C.P. No. 13016) as the Secretarial Auditor of the
Company to conduct the Secretarial Audit as prescribed under Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013. The
Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015 in Form MR 3 is presented in Annexure - 11
attachedtothisreport.

Policies of Company
Your Company has posted the below mentioned policies on its website www.wepsolutions.co.in under the heading
‘Investor Corner..
1. CodeofConductforDirectorsand Senior Management Personnel
Whistle Blower’s Policy
Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy
Related Party Transaction Policy
Compensation Policy
Internal Code for Prevention of Insider Trading
Risk Management Policy

No ok wh

Research and Development

WeP has dedicated Research & Development team focused on Retail, Printer and Application specific printer
products solutions. WeP R&D has complete in-house facility for executing projects from concept to productinvolving
various engineering domains like Electro-magnetics, Power Electronics, Thermal and Vibration. WeP with 18 years of
rich experience in design and development of mechatronics products has delivered 320 varieties of products. WeP
design team has delivered products deals with dynamics of mechanical components and its behavioral study with
electronicsforall extreme conditions and adherence to the International Standards and Certifications. R&D team has
executed several application specific printer projects for Voting Machine, Petrol bunk, Retail automation, Pharmacy
and Dairy segments.

Internal Control System and Their Adequacy

The Company has proper and adequate internal control system, which ensures that all assets are safeguarded and
protected and that the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. M/s Gnanoba & Bhat, Chartered
Accountants, Bangalore have been re-appointed as the Internal Auditors for the Financial Year 2015-16 by the Board
on the recommendation of the Audit Committee to oversee and carry out Internal Audit activities. The audit is based
onaninternalaudit plan, whichisreviewed eachyearin consultation with the Audit Committee.

The Internal Auditors independently evaluate the adequacy of internal controls and concurrently audit the majority
of the transactions in value terms. Independence of the Audit and Compliance is ensured by direct reporting of
Internal Auditor to the Audit Committee of the Board.
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Employee Stock Option Plan

During the year the company has granted 254,000 ESOP option to its employees under the ESOP Scheme 2011. As
required under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999, the applicable disclosures ason 31st March, 2015 are as tabulated below:

Optionsatthebeginningofthe period (1stApril2014) 96,000
Options granted during the period 254,000
Price PerShare (Rs.) 10
Pricing Policy FaceValue
OptionsVested 57,600
OptionsLapsed 45,000
Optionsavailable forexercise 30,600
Options Exercised NIL
Total number of Shares arising as a result of exercise of Options NIL
Variations of terms of Options NIL
Money realized by exercise of Options NIL
Total numberof Optionsinforce 305,000

Related Party Transactions

Alltransactions entered with Related Parties for the year under review were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary
course of business and that the provision of Section 188(1) of the Companies Act 2013 are not attracted. Further, there
are no material related party transactions during the year under review with the Promoters, Directors and Key
Managerial Personnel. Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee and the Board for review
and approval. Form AOC 2 pursuant to clause (h) of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure - IV and is attached to this report.

VigilMechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

The Company promotes ethical behavior in allits business activities and has put in place a mechanism for reporting
illegal or unethical behavior. The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy under which the employees are free to report
to the managementinstances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of
conduct or ethical policy. Employees may also report illegal or unethical behavior to the Chairman of Audit
Committee. During the year under review, no employee was denied access to the Audit Committee. During the
Financial Year 2014-15, Company has received one complaint. Complaint received has been disposed of after taking
appropriateactionand no complaintremain pendingason31stMarch,2015.

Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention,
prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment of women at workplace and to provide a platform for redressal of
complaints and grievances against sexual harassment. During the Financial Year 2014-15, Company has not received
any complainton sexual harassment.

Significantand Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going concern
status of the Company andits future operations.

Particulars of Employees

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company, shall be provided on
request. The Company is not having any employee drawing remuneration exceeding the limits as specified under the
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Companies Act 2013. The applicable disclosures as on 31st March, 2015 pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act
2013isfurnished inAnnexure - Vandis attached to thisreport.

Depository System

The Company’s shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic mode. In India there are two depositoriesi.e. National
Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). To facilitate trading in
DEMAT form, Company have established connectivity with both the depositories. Currently about 95.85% of the Paid
up Capitalisheldin electronic mode.

Human Resources

The Company’s HR Policy is to build a high performing organization, by motivating each individual to contribute to
the achievement of the departmental as well as Company’s goals. There is effective performance management
system to monitor the performance levels and reward as appropriate. Your Directors take this opportunity to record
theirappreciation forthe contribution of allemployees of your company during the year.

Industrial Relations

Your company maintained healthy, cordial and harmonious industrial relations at all the levels. The enthusiasm and
efforts of employees have enabled the Company to remain at the leadership position in the industry. It has taken
various steps toimprove productivity across organization.

Green Initiative

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has announced “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” by allowing
paperless compliances by companies vide circular dated April 21,2011 stating that a Company is in compliance with
Section 20 of the Companies Act 2013, if the service of documents has been made through electronic mode.

Electronic Copies of the Annual Report 2014-15 and the Notice of 20th Annual General Meeting are sent to the
members whose e-mail addresses are registered with Depository Participant(s). For members who have not
registered theire-mailaddresses, physical copies of the Annual Report 2014-15 and the Notice of 20th Annual General
Meeting aresentin the permitted mode. Members requiring physical copies can send arequestto the Company.

Acknowledgments

Your Directors thankallthe Shareholders for the continued confidence and trust placed by them in the Company. The
Directors sincerely appreciate the high degree of professionalism, commitment and dedication displayed by
employeesatalllevels.

Your Directors record their sincere appreciation to the Central and State Governments, banks, institutions,
stakeholders and business associates for their whole-hearted support and co-operation.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Bangalore Ram N Agarwal
Date: 25th July, 2015 Chairman and Managing Director
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Annexure-|

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

The Particulars of technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as per Section 134(3) (m) of
the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended
31stMarch,2015is given below and forms part of the Directors’ Report.

A.

Conservation of Energy:

The company’s operations are energy intensive. However, significant measures are taken to reduce the
energy consumption by using energy- efficient equipments. Conservation of energy is always on the “ To Do”
list at all levels of operations. Efforts are made in this direction on a continuous basis. The requirement of
disclosure of particulars in this respect as prescribed to be furnished in Form A (rule 2) is not applicable and
hence not provided. However, the company has taken the following adequate measures to conserve the
energy:

« Localizedlightingin place of community lighting.

« Employeesarehabituated to switch off fans, lights during the lunch break and at close of office hours.

« Energyefficientand battery operated productreleases.

« Newdesign mandatory compliance for low powerand energy star compliance.

Technology Absorption:
Efforts madein Technology absorptionis stated as per Form B given below:

FORMB (Rule2)
1. ResearchandDevelopment (R &D)

a. SpecificAreasinwhich R&D activityis carried out by the Company:
+ Design&Development of Printers and Retail Billing Solutions.
e ProductEngineering Services for Application specific printers and electromechanical systems.
« PCBDesignforAnalog/Digitaland mixedsignal.
e GD&T/CAD/CAM/CAE
 Application specificthermal printer development.
« UniversalMagnetic path design for next generation printhead design.
e Ethernet,GSM/GPRSforremote managementof printers.
« Communication protocols Serial, Parallel, USB.
* Retail F&B Software design and development for Win CE and Android ICS Operating system.
» Design&Developmentof ASIC/FPGA/SOC based systems.
e Designcompliancefor EMI-EMC,ROHS & Energy Star.

b. Benefitsderived asaresultofaboveR&D:
e HighSpeed printerrelease with Ethernet, Paralleland USB interfaces.

« Self reliance in print head design and development for Dot Matrix Printers. All in-house captive
requirements are met with ourown Print Heads.

¢ Retail productvariantsdesignand developmentbased onthermaland impact platform.

« RetailsolutionsforApplication specific requirements like Diary society, Pharmacy and F&B.
e Retail central Serverand Client product solutions for multiple location chain shops.

« F&BsoftwarereleaseforAndroid OS
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« Application specific printers design and manufacturing for voting machine and Petrol dispenser
Retail automation.

c. FuturePlanofaction:
« ExpansionofRetail Productsrange and solutions with augmentation of features.
« Expansionof GPRS, Ethernet connectivity application devices.
* Retail SolutionsforBillingmachine and Smart phone connectivity.
« Retail Smartsolutionsforservice application model.
» POSSystemdevelopmentfor MicroATM and UID applications.
« Application specific printers for kiosk, Petroldispenser and ATM.
ExpenditureonR&D:
Expenditure : Z2.20Mn
R & D Expenditure as % of total turnover : 0.21%

Technology absorption,adaptation andinnovation:

Effortsin brief made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation:-

Technology demonstrations in the following areas were made towards absorption, adoption and
innovation.

e Ethernet, GSM/GPRS Communication forremote management of printers.

e ThermalPrintertechnology absorption for retail applications.

« Retail Product Solutions for F&B, Wholesale, Pharmacy and Diary Societies

« Embedded system optimization for easy configurability and usability of retail products.
« Adoptionofvariability and tolerance analysis for high precision parts design.

Benefitderived as aresult of above efforts:-
How to deliver Tech Fantasy productsto our customers and consumers?

At R&D that is our primary challenge and motivation today. Inspired by trends and the consumers’
latent desires, we are proactively re-fashioning our R & D outlook to deliver consumer sensitivity in
our product design and development. We have a dedicated Research & Development team focusing
on Retail productsolutionsand Application specific printers.

Due to technology absorption and development, we are placing ourselves in a better position to
deliver on our new customer promise of “TECH FANTASY”. Also these research and Technology
explorationswillenable “Wow!” elements to customerin each delivery of the products.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last five years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year) following information be furnished: NA

C. ForeignExchange Earnings and Outgo:
The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo
duringtheyearintermsofactual outflow:
(%in’000)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March, 2015 31st March, 2014
Foreign Exchange Earnings NIL 7,715.65
Foreign Exchange Outgo 301,120.96 341,898.79
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Form MGT -9
Extract of Annual Return as on the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2015

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.  REGISTRATIONAND OTHERDETAILS:

1 |(CIN L72200KA1995PLC025617

2 | Registration Date 1st March, 1995

3 | Name of the Company WeP Solutions Limited

4 | Category [ Sub-Category of the Company |Category: Company Limited by Shares

Sub-Category: Indian Non - Government Company.

5 | Address of the Registered Office and
Contact details

Address:

40/1A, Basappa Complex,

Lavelle Road, Bangalore 560 001, Karnataka State
Contact Details:

a) Telephone : 080 - 66112000

b) Email : investor@wepsol.in

6 |Whether Listed Company (Yes/No)

Yes, Listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

7 |Name, Address and Contact Details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

Name: Cameo Corporate Services Limited
Address:

#1, Subramanian Building, Club House Road,
Anna Salai, Chennai - 600 002. Tamil Nadu State
Contact Details:

a) Telephone : 044 - 28460390

b) Email : investor@cameoindia.com

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:
(All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the turnover of the Company shall be stated)

sl Name and Description of main NIC Code of the | % to total turnover
No. product / services product / services | of the Company
1 |Manufacturing and Distribution of Computer Peripherals 3670 64.46
2 | Managed Printing and Document Services 3670 35.54
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PARTICULARS OF HOLDING,SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

Sl. | Name and address CIN/GLN Holding [ Subsidiary /| | % of Shares | Applicable
No. of the Company Associate held Section
Not applicable
IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN:
(Equity Share Capital breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i.  Category-wise Shareholding:
No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year (01.04.2014) end of the year (31.03.2015) %
Category of ) ) Change
Shareholders . % of . Y of during
DEMAT |Physical| Total Total | DEMAT |Physical| Total | Total the year
Shares Shares
A Promoters
1 |Indian
a) Individual / HUF 3656949 0| 3656949 15.89| 3667149 0] 3667149| 15.94 0.05
b) Central 0 0 o] 000 0 0 o| 000 0.0
Government
¢) State 0 0 o] 000 0 0 o| 000 0.0
Government(s)
d) Bodies Corporate | 5353303 0| 5353303 23.27| 6123567 0| 6123567| 26.62 3.35
e) Banks / Fl 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
f) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-total (A) (1) 9010252 0(9010252| 39.16| 9790716 0( 9790716 42.56 3.40
2 |Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Other - Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
c) Bodies Corporates 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
d) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
e) Any Other 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-total (A) (2) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Total Shareholding of
Promoter (A) 9010252 0(9010252| 39.16| 9790716 0( 9790716 42.56 3.40
= (A)(1) + (A)(2)
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No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the .
beginning of the year (01.04.2014) end of the year (31.03.2015) %o
Category of ) ) Change
Shareholders . % of . %0f | Guring
DEMAT |Physical| Total Total | DEMAT |Physical| Total | Total the year
Shares Shares
B Public Shareholding

1 |Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Banks / FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
) Central 0 0 of 000 0 0 o| 0.00 0.00
Government
d) State 0 0 of 000 0 0 o| 0.00 0.00
Government(s)
€) Venture Capital 0 0 o 0.00 0 0 o[ 000 000
Funds
f) Insurance 0 0 o 0.00 0 0 of o000 000
Companies
g) Flls 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
h) Foreign Venture 0 0 of 000 0 0 o| 0.00 0.00
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
Sub-total (B) (1) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

2 [Non - Institutions
a) Bodies Corporate
(i) Indian 2420260 40000( 2460260 10.70| 2315385 40000(| 2355385 10.24 -0.46
(ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
b) Individuals
(i) Individual
shareholders holding | ool goas36] 3600856|  15.70| 3115262| 650920| 3766101 16.37]  0.67
nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 Lakh
(i) Individual
Shareholders holding | ooo70-4 145097( 6130330|  26.69| 5902211 142292| 6044503| 26.28]  -0.41
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs. 1 Lakh
c) Others (specify)
(i) Clearning 3411 o| 3411] o001] 1237 of 12371 o001 0.00
Members
g'a)m"i'l'ir::” Undivided | 77597 100| 77697|  0.34| 126209 100 126309]  0.55 0.21
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No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year (01.04.2014) end of the year (31.03.2015) %
Category of Shareholders % of % of Z‘:lar:‘gge
DEMAT |[Physical| Total Total | DEMAT |Physical| Total Total | ¢he year
Shares Shares

(ili) Non Resident 842627| 120082| 962709|  4.18| 798948 120082| 919030| 4.00| -0.18

Indians
(iv) Trusts 739957 0| 739957 3.22 0 101 101 0.00 -3.22
Sub-total (B) (2) 13037510 955710| 13993220 60.84(12259252| 953504(13212756| 57.44 -3.40

Total Public
Shareholding (B) 13037510 955710| 13993220 60.84(12259252| 953504(13212756| 57.44 -3.40
=(B)(1) +(B)(2)

Shares held by

Custodian for GDRs 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
and ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) | 22047762 955710| 23003472 100.00/22049968| 953504|23003472| 100.00 0.00

ii. Promoters Shareholding:

Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end
of the year (01.04.2014) of the year (31.03.2015)
o % Change
sL % of :’ ° % of Total | 0 °f Shares in Share-
Shareholders Name Total Shares % of Tota Pledged/ | holding
No. Number Pledged/ Number | Shares of during th
Shares of Encumbered | during the
of Shares Encumbered | of Shares the
the to Total year
Compan to Total Company Shares
pany Shares

1 |RNAWEP Investments | o, ) 0209 14.03 0.00| 3248109 14.12 0.00 0.09
Private Limited

WeP Peripherals

2 |y 2124994 9.24 0.00| 2124994 9.24 0.00 0.00
3 |wepsolutionsindia 0 0 0.00| 750464 3.26 0.00 3.26
limited

4 |Ram N Agarwal 2162814 9.40 0.00| 2173014 9.45 0.00 0.05
5 [Sarita Agarwal 121568 0.53 0.00] 121568 0.53 0.00 0.00
6 |Suman Jain 340525 1.48 0.00] 340525 1.48 0.00 0.00
7 |Ram Narayan Agarwal| 1032042 4.49 0.00| 1032042 4.49 0.00 0.00

Total 9010252|  39.16 0.00 9790716  42.56 0.00 3.40
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iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding:

e

o Tagh

bsehgai;ili‘:;d;?fhaet;::r Cumt:ilat!ve Shareholding
sL _ (01.04.2014) T E T
No. Particulars Number of | %o of Total Number of | 20 of Total
Shares Shares of the Shares Shares of the
Company Company
1 |RNAWEP Investments Private Limited
At the beginning of the year 3,228,309 14.03 3,228,309 14.03
Purchase on 19th May, 2014 7,000 0.03 3,235,309 14.06
Purchase on 20th May, 2014 1,000 0.00 3,236,309 14.06
Purchase on 29th May, 2014 11,800 0.06 3,248,109 14.12
At the end of the year 3,248,109 14.12
2 |WeP Peripherals Limited
At the beginning of the year 2,124,994 9.24 2,124,994 9.24
At the end of the year 2,124,994 9.24
3 |wep solutions india limited
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00 0 0.00
Purchased on 12th December, 2014 1,000 0.00 1,000 0.00
Purchased on 13th December, 2014 2,380 0.01 3,380 0.01
Purchased on 16th December, 2014 2,577 0.01 5,957 0.02
Purchased on 17th December, 2014 1,700 0.01 7,657 0.03
Purchased on 17th December, 2014 1,650 0.01 9,307 0.04
Purchased on 19th December, 2014 1,200 0.00 10,507 0.04
Purchased on 19th December, 2014 739,957 3.22 750,464 3.26
At the end of the year 750,464 3.26
4 |Ram N Agarwal
At the beginning of the year 2,162,814 9.40 2,162,814 9.40
Purchase on 28th August, 2014 10,200 0.05 2,173,014 9.45
At the end of the year 2,173,014 9.45
5 |Sarita Agarwal
At the beginning of the year 121,568 0.53 121,568 0.53
At the end of the year 121,568 0.53
6 [Suman Jain
At the beginning of the year 340,525 1.48 340,525 1.48
At the end of the year 340,525 1.48
7 |Ram Narayan Agarwal
At the beginning of the year 1,032,042 4.49 1,032,042 4.49
At the end of the year 1,032,042 4.49
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iv.

Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

bse;?;:?:;d;?fha:;zsr Cumulat!ve Shareholding

sl. Name of Shareholders (01.04.2014) during the year

" LGl SI:/;:::ST:ft :Il1e e SI:/;::sTgft :Il1e
Shares Company Shares Company
1 |Wipro Limited
At the beginning of the year 1,836,000 7.98 1,836,000 7.98
At the end of the year 1,836,000 7.98
2 |WeP Trust
At the beginning of the year 739,957 3.22 739,957 3.22
Sold on 19th December, 2014 739,957 3.22 0 0
At the end of the year 0 0
3 |Rakesh M Bohra
At the beginning of the year 612,857 2.66 612,857 2.66
At the end of the year 612,857 2.66
4 |Deepak A Chari
At the beginning of the year 292,898 1.27 292,898 1.27
At the end of the year 292,898 1.27
5 |Sattva Developers Private Limited
At the beginning of the year 271,774 1.18 271,774 1.18
At the end of the year 271,774 1.18
6 |EVS Sai Babu
At the beginning of the year 236,852 1.03 236,852 1.03
At the end of the year 236,852 1.03
7 |Dilip Kumar Sahu
At the beginning of the year 225,750 0.98 225,750 0.98
Purchased on 4th April, 2014 6,191 0.03 231,941 1.01
Purchased on 11th April, 2014 290 0.00 232,231 1.01
Purchased on 11th July, 2014 3,600 0.02 235,831 1.03
Purchased on 18th July, 2014 10,000 0.04 245,831 1.07
Purchased on 25th July, 2014 5,101 0.03 250,932 1.10
Purchased on 8th August, 2014 10,000 0.04 260,932 1.14
Purchased on 14th August, 2014 700 0.00 261,632 1.14
Purchased on 20th March, 2015 4,087 0.02 265,719 1.16
At the end of the year 265,719 1.16
8 |Ranbir Singh

At the beginning of the year 162,497 0.71 162,497 0.71
At the end of the year 162,497 0.71
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bsehg?;i?:;d;;‘fhf;:‘:r Cumulative Shareholding
sl. Name of Shareholders (01.04.2014) R
" | I G SI:/;:efsT:ft :Il1e U T 6 SI:/; ;)efs-r::ft :Il1e
Shares Company Shares Company
9 |[Sridhar Mitta
At the beginning of the year 158,897 0.69 158,897 0.69
At the end of the year 158,897 0.69
10 |Podila Panduranga Rao
At the beginning of the year 186,766 0.81 186,766 0.81
Sold on 17th October, 2014 1,250 0.01 185,516 0.80
Sold on 5th December, 2014 276 0.00 185,240 0.80
Sold on 12th December, 2014 1,595 0.01 183,645 0.79
Sold on 19th December, 2014 626 0.00 183,019 0.79
Sold on 6th February, 2015 10,053 0.04 172,966 0.75
Sold on 13th February, 2015 9,550 0.04 163,416 0.71
Sold on 20th February, 2015 5,777 0.03 157,639 0.68
Sold on 27th February, 2015 3,100 0.01 154,539 0.67
Sold on 26th March, 2015 26 0.00 154,513 0.67
At the end of the year 154,513 0.67 154,513 0.67
v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
big?;i?:;d;?fha:;zsr CumlLlat!ve Shareholding
sl. Name of Director (01.04.2014) uringthe year
No. | Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) % of Total % of Total
b [ G Shares of the U 6 Shares of the
Shares Company Shares Company
1 |Ram N Agarwal - Chairman and Managing Director
At the beginning of the year 3,194,856 13.89 3,194,856 13.89
Purchase on 28th August 2014 10,200 0.05 3,205,056 13.94
At the end of the year 3,205,056 13.94
2 [Shankar Jaganathan - Independent Director
At the beginning of the year 2,228 0.01 2,228 0.01
At the end of the year 2,228 0.01
3 [Mythily Ramesh - Independent Director
At the beginning of the year 14,040 0.06 14,040 0.06
At the end of the year 14,040 14,040
4 |Dr.AL Rao - Non Executive Director
At the beginning of the year 385,542 1.68 385,542 1.68
At the end of the year 385,542 1.68
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bSha.\reI.loldmg e Cumulative Shareholding
eginning of the year during the year
) (01.04.2014) gthey
sl. Name of Director
No. | Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) % of Total % of Total
Number of Number of
Shares of the Shares of the
Shares Shares
Company Company
5 |BR Ganesh - Small Shareholders
and Independent Director
At the beginning of the year 1,666 0.01 1,666 0.01
At the end of the year 1,666 0.01
6 |Prashee Agarwal - Additional Director
At the beginning of the year 5,181 0.02 5,181 0.02
At the end of the year 5,181 0.02
7 |Sandeep Kumar Goyal - Chief Financial Officer (KMP)
At the beginning of the year 5,028 0.02 5,028 0.02
At the end of the year 5,028 0.02
vi. Indebtness: (in 2
. Secured I:oans Unsecured . Total
Particulars excluding Deposits
. Loans Indebtedness
Deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the Financial Year
i) Principal Amount 123,395,651 NIL NIL| 123,395,651
i) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL
i) Interest accured but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (i+ii+iii) 123,395,651 NIL NIL| 123,395,651
Change in indebtedness during the Financial Year
Addition NIL NIL NIL NIL
Reduction 9,138,211 NIL NIL 9,138,211
Net Change 9,138,211 NIL NIL 9,138,211
Indebtedness at the end of the Financial Year
i) Principal Amount 114,257,440 NIL NIL| 114,257,440
i) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL
iii) Interest accured but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL

% WeP Solutions Limited
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vii. Remuneration of directors and key managerial personnel:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Director and / or Manager

(in%

Name of Managing Director

SL. Particulars of Remuneration P K Gopalakrishnan* Ram N Agarwal**
No (Managing Director) (Chairman and
Managing Director)
1 Gross Salary
A tS;;alLyaa;n?;:xrc;\gts’lcl);élconta|ned in section 17(1) of 5,235,508 NIL
B \l/;l6ule of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income -Tax Act, NIL NIL
c ll:z:}flltggllleu of Salary u/s 17(3) of the Income - Tax NIL NIL
2 Stock Option NIL NIL
3 Sweat Equity NIL NIL
4 Commission
As a % of Profit (5%) NIL 132,608
b |Others, specify NIL NIL
5 Others, specify NIL NIL
TOTAL (A) 5,235,508 132,608
Note: *P K Gopalakrishnan Ceased to be a Director w.e.f 1st January, 2015.
**Ram N Agarwal appointed as Chairman and Managing Director w.e.f 16th February, 2015
B. Remuneration to Other Director
::; Particulars of Remuneration Gowl.tl:l:’ama Psr:::;\ Jasghaa:\nalzzl;n :ay;helg BR Ganesh Am.:;t:tl ()
(1) Non Executive Director (Independent)
1 /F(::isn:?]:ii:;:nnj;%iﬁ;:rd 80,000 60,000 100,000 60,000 100,000 400,000
2 |Commission 0 0 0 0 0 0
3 |Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total (1) 80,000/ 60,000 100,000 60,000 100,000/ 400,000
(2) Other Non-Executive Director
:t Particulars of Remuneration Viswi:lwara D:;';:L Am-::xt:: )
1 |Fees for attending Board 100,000 80,000 180,000
/ Committee Meetings
2 |Commission 0 0 0
3 |Others (specify) 0 0 0
Total (2) 100,000 80,000 180,000
Total (B) = (1) +(2) 580,000
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Managing Director / Manager
| WholeTime Director

(in3)
Key Managerial Personnel
sL. ) ) Sandeep §ujata
No. Particulars of Remuneration Kumar Goyal Arvind Lele*
Chief Financial Company
Officer Secretary
1 Gross Salary
a |Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 3,051,509 141,360
of the Income-Tax Act, 1961
b [Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income -Tax Act, 1961 - -
¢ |Profitin lieu of Salary u/s 17(3) of the Income - Tax Act, 1961 - -
2 Stock Option (No. of shares) 36,000 -
3 Sweat Equity - _
4 Commission - -
a |Asa % of Profit - -
b |Others, specify - -
5 Others, specify - -
Total 3,051,509 141,360
Note: *Sujata Arvind Lele appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f 1st November, 2014
viii. Penalties / Punishment / Compounding of offences:
Details
::; Type g:r:;::i:fst::t Desi::::ion szn?::r:l::,l{ / A;:ZI:: ?ig)(u':tb)/ mal:iZ',)?fa almy
2013 Compounding (give details)
Fees imposed
A [COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
B |DIRECTORS
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C |OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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Annexure - 111

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
Form MR-3

For the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2015

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,
WeP Solutions Limited,
40/1A, Basappa Complex, Lavelle Road, Bangalore - 560001.

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good
corporate practices by WeP Solutions Limited (herein after referred to as “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressingmy opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report thatin my opinion, the company has, during the
audit period covering the Financial Year ended on 31st March 2015 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunderand also thatthe Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanismin place to the extent, in
themannerand subjecttothereporting made hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
CompanyfortheFinancial Yearended on 31st March 2015 according to the provisions of:

1. TheCompaniesAct,2013, (theAct) and the Rules made thereunder;

2. TheSecurities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder;
3. TheDepositoriesAct,1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
4

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
(‘SEBIACt):

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;

b) The Securitiesand Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
c) TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

e) TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regardingthe Companies Actand dealing with client;

g) TheSecuritiesand Exchange Board Of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
h) TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

6. Information TechnologyAct,2000 asamended up to 31st March 2015;

7. EmployeesProvident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;
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Employees State InsuranceAct, 1948;
. Environment Protection Act, 1986 and otherapplicable environmental laws;
10. Indian ContractAct, 1872;
11. Income TaxAct, 1961;
12. Indian StampAct, 1999;
13. The FactoriesAct, 1948 asamended by the Factories (Amendment) Act, 1987 ;
14. Payment of BonusAct, 1965;
15. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;
16. The Trade Marks Act, 1999;
andsuchotherapplicable laws as observed during the course of audit.

I have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism formed by the
Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws, Rules and Regulations to the Company. | have also
examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) to the extend applicable as
onthedate of myaudit

ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except that certain statutory registrations as applicable locally to a few of
the branches were found to be incomplete and were unavailable as on the date of the audit. However, the same were
regularized subsequent to audit observations.

| furtherreportthat:

i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
placeduringthe period under review were carried outin compliance with the provisions of the Act.

ii) Adequate noticeisgiven to all directors to schedule the Board and other Committee Meetings. Agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting.

iii) As per the Minutes of the Meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were
unanimous and no dissentingviews have been recorded.

iv) There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitorand ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

v) During the audit period the company has no major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to Section 180 of
the Companies Act, 2013, having major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws,
rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.

vi) Duringtheaudit period, there were noinstances of:

a) Public/Rights / Preferential issue of shares / Debentures / Sweat Equity.

) Redemption / Buy Back of Securities.

) Merger / Amalgamation / Reconstruction etc.,

)

oo

d) Foreign Technical Collaborations.
S. Kannan
Place: Bangalore FCS: 6261
Date: 17th July, 2015 CP No.: 13016
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FORM AOC -2

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contract/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies Act 2013 including certain arms length transactions

under third proviso thereto.

1. Detailsof contracts and arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

1 |Name(s) of the related party NIL

2 |Nature of Relationship NIL

3 [Nature of contract / arrangements / transactions NIL

4 |Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions NIL

5 |Salient terms of the contracts / arrangement / transactions including the value, if any NIL

6 [Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions NIL

7 |Date of approval by the Board, if any NIL

8 |Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

9 Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under NIL
first proviso to Section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transaction at arm’s length basis:

1 |Name(s) of the related party WeP Peripherals Limited

2 |Nature of Relationship Promoter Company

3 [Nature of contract / arrangements / transactions Purchase and Sale of Goods and Services

4 |Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions 1year

5 |[Salient terms of the contracts / arrangement / transactions |Sale of Goods and Services Rs. 1,345,296
including the value, if any Purchase of Goods and Services Rs. 11,068,540

6 [Justification for entering into such contracts or Sale and Purchases of Goods and Services
arrangements or transactions

7 |Date of approval by the Board, if any 3rd May, 2014

8 |Amount paid as advances, if any NIL

Note: Appropriate approvals have been taken from Audit Committee for related party transactions.

Place: Bangalore
Date: 25th July, 2015
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Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ram N Agarwal
Chairman and Managing Director
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Annexure-V

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL

PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules made there-under, in

respectofthe employeesofthe company are as mentioned below:

a) Theratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company

forthe FinancialYear2014-15:

Name of Directors

Title

Ratio of Median Remuneration

Independent Director

Ram N Agarwal* Chairman and Managing Director 0.38
HV Gowthama Independent Director 0.23
Sudhir Prakash Independent Director 0.17
Shankar Jaganathan Independent Director 0.29
Mythily Ramesh Independent Director 0.17
G H Visweswara Non - Executive Director 0.29
Dr.ALRao Non - Executive Director 0.23
B R Ganesh Small Shareholders and 0.29

Note: *Part of the year.

b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,

Company Secretary or Manager, ifany in the Financial Year 2014-15:

Name of Directors Title Percentage Increase in Remuneration
Ram N Agarwal Chairman and Managing Director NA
HV Gowthama Independent Director NA
Sudhir Prakash Independent Director NA
Shankar Jaganathan Independent Director NA
Mythily Ramesh Independent Director NA
G H Visweswara Non - Executive Director NA
Dr.ALRao Non - Executive Director NA
B R Ganesh Small Shareholders and NA
Independent Director
Sandeep Kumar Goyal Chief Financial Officer 11%
Sujata Arvind Lele Company Secretary NA

c) Thepercentageincreaseinthe medianremuneration of employeesinthe Financial Year 2014-15: The median

remuneration hasremained sameintheFinancial Year2014-15
d) Thenumberofpermanentemployeeson therolls of companyinthe Financial Year2014-15:149

e) Theexplanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance:
On an average, employees received an increase of 9.7%. The increase in remuneration is in line with the market
trends. In order to ensure that remuneration reflects company performance, the performance pay in linked to

organisation performances.

By WeP Solutions Limited
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f) Comparisonofthe remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company:

(% in Lakhs)
Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during the Financial Year 2014-15 91.40
(aggregated)
Revenue from Operations 10,417.66
Remuneration (as % of Revenue) 0.88
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 223.80
Remuneration (as % of PBT) 40.84

g) Variation in the market capitalization of the Company, Price Earning Ratio as at the closing date of the
current Financial Year and previous Financial Year and percentage increase over decrease in the market
quotations of the shares of the company in comparison to the rate at which company came out with the last
public offer in case of listed companies, and in case of unlisted companies, the variations in the net worth of
the company as at the close of the current financialyear and previous financialyear:

Particulars Unit | 3is I\jI\:r‘::: 2015 31st nﬁ:rt: 2014 Variation
Closing rate of Shares at
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) | R 13.50 7.00 92.8%
EPS (Consolidated) Rs. 0.69 0.91 -24.17%
Market Capitalization Rs. 3,105.47 Lakhs 1,610.24 Lakhs 92.8%
Price Earning Ratio Ratio 19.56 7.69 154%

h) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnelin the
last Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration: The average increase in salaries of employees other than Managerial Personnel in 2014-15 was 9.7%.
Therewas noincreaseinthe Managerial Remuneration duringtheyear.

i) Comparison of eachremuneration of Key Managerial Personnelagainst the performance of the Company:

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars Managing Director* | Chief Financial Officer | Company Secretary
Remuneration 53.68 30.51 1.41
Revenue 10,417.66 10,417.66 10,417.66
Remuneration (as % of revenue) 0.52% 0.29% 0.01%
Profit Before Tax (PBT) 223.80 223.80 223.80
Remuneration (as % of PBT) 23.9% 13.6% 0.7%

Note: *For both the Directors during the year.

j)  The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the Director: The remuneration
payabletothe Chairmanand Managing Directoris based on a percentage share of profit made by the company.

k) Theratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director to that of the employees who are not Directors but
receiveremuneration in excess of the highest paid Director during the year: NA

l) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: The Company affirms
remunerationis as perthe remuneration policy of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Investors are cautioned that this discussion contains statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Statementsin
this report on Management discussion and analysis relating to the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates,
expectations or predictions may be forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable security laws or
regulations. These statements are based upon certain assumptions and expectations of future events. Actual
results could however differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a
difference to the Company’s operations include global and domestic demand supply conditions, selling prices, raw
material costs and availability, changes in government regulations and tax structure, general economic
developmentsin India and abroad, factors such as litigation, industrial relations and other unforeseen events. The
Company assumes no responsibility in respect of forward looking statements made herein which may undergo
changesin future on the basis of subsequent developments, information or events.

1. Overview

The year 2014-15 saw volatility amidst positive factors like declining oil prices and economy showing signs of
revival. Reduced inflation, falling oil prices, stable rupee and improved consumer spending have put India on
the track for accelerated growth. With rising aspirations across sectors, it becomes a challenge to retain
customers, skilled resources and other key partners. These challenges vary from being a competitive player,
effective and efficient service provider, oran aspirationalemployer.

34

Financial Performance
Your company’s revenues come from two major lines of business - Managed Printing Solutions(MPS) Service
businessand the Manufacturing, Design and Distribution of Computer Peripherals Business (Printers Business).

Revenue: The stepstakeninthe previous years to drive operational efficiency in MPS Business bore fruit this
year as the revenues grew from Rs.322.9Mn in FY 2014 to Rs. 343.5Mn in FY 2015. This growth was a result of
innovative and customized solutions made by your company to meet the changing needs of existing
customersand emerging needs to new customers.

However, revenues in the Printers Business declined significantly during the year. The revenues dipped to
Rs. 672Mn in FY 2015 from Rs.834Mn in FY 2014. This was due to de-growth in the traditional impact printer
business. However, among the various product lines the Retail Printers registered a significant jump of 30%
over the previous year. The growth in this segment was however insufficient to cover the degrowth in the
traditional product lines. In addition to this during FY 2015, the company did not get anticipated business
from the VVPAT solution which was developed and tested successfully in May 2014 elections from the
machinessupplied byusinFY2014.

Operating Profit: During the year the operating profit of the company declined from Rs.48.65Mn in FY 2014
to Rs.40.05Mn. Of this the major decline was in the case of Printers business where the operating profit
dipped from Rs.29.97Mn to an operating loss of Rs.6.95Mn. This significant fall was however covered to a
large extent by the MPS Business where the operating profitjumped from Rs.18.68Mn to Rs.47.01Mn.

While the Printers Business suffered due to fall in revenues, the MPS Business improved both on revenues
and operating costs. Higher asset utilization, improving customer support and improved employee
productivity were the prime reasons for the jumpin the operating margin of MPS Business.

Net Working Capital: The company’s operations are working capital intensive as it has to maintain supplies
of spare parts and consumables across India for meeting customer service commitments. Further, since the
customers are usually large corporates, public sector banks etc, there are receivables for the products
supplied and services rendered. During the year both inventory and receivables had increased over the
previous year. However, this increase was set off by trade payables where the company negotiated better
creditterms with its suppliers and got extended credit period. Due to this the net working capital cycle of the
companyimproved from 104 Daysin FY2014to 87 daysin FY2015.
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Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

The Company has in place adequate internal control systems commensurate with its size and nature of its
operations. These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to recording and providing
reliable financial and operational information, safeguarding Company’s assets, promoting operational
efficiencies and ensuring compliance with various statutory provisions. The company has appointed
M/sGnanoba &Bhat to oversee and carry outthe internal audit of its activities. The Audit Committee reviews the
adequacy of internal control systems, audit findings and suggestions. The Company’s statutory auditors
regularly interact with the Audit Committee to share their findings and the status of further improvement
actions under implementation. The CFO certification provided in the Annual Report discusses about the
adequacy ofthe ourlInternal Control Systems and procedures.

Human Resource Development/Industrial Relations

WeP’s people centric focus providing an open work environment and fostering continuous learning,
improvement and development helped its employees to facilitate delivery of excellence for its customers. WeP
believes that success of any company lies in making the customers happy and satisfied. The human resources
strategy enabled the company to attract, integrate, develop and retain the best talent required for driving the
business growth. The company has created a performance driven environment with all employees having
identified key result areas directly aligned with the business results.

WeP continued its focus on fresh campus hires and has developed an exhaustive internal training module
involving mentoring programmes, live case studies, on field training modules in addition to class room training.
This hashelped the company to promote a culture of performance driven by WeP Values.

SWOTANALYSIS

We appreciate the market realities, stiff competition faced by your company mostly from the unorganized and local
service providers. And your Board acknowledges the following major SWOT Analysis more specific to your company.

Strengths:

1. Scalableinfrastructure with PAN India presence and wide geographical reach.

2. StrongResearch &Developmentskill setto develop application specific printing devices and solutions.

3. Longstandingrelationships with Customersand Technology partners.

4. Empanelmentwith many GovernmentNodal Agencies

Weaknesses:

1. Inabilitytodevelop technical expertise to move up thevalue chainin MPS business.

2. Inabilitytoretainkeyresourcesdueto lack of substantial revenue growth.

3. Dependencyon products manufactured by other OEM’s for providing solutionsin MPS business.

Opportunities

1. Demand movingupinapplication specific printing solutions bothinImpactand Non-Impact printing area.

2. Changes in regulatory and economic environment fuelling the need for printing and Document Management
Solutions.

3. Increasing number of customers looking for expert partners to manage their non-core needs vis a vis their core
business.

4. Significant movement ahead by customers to look for total Document Management Solutions for their

enterprises.
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Threats

1. Strict Competition from multiple players specifically from the unorganized sector forces us to cut our prices
steep resultingin uneconomical operation.

2. Assets under deployment in MPS business are reaching their cycle of replacement, thereby creating a pressure
ontheinvestmentplans of the company.

3. Significant revenues of the company are from the Banking, Financial Service and Insurance (BFSI) Segments.
Anydirectorindirectimpact onthe BFSlindustry canimpactthe revenues ofthe company.

4. As the company is largely dependent on imports for its supply of printers, consumables and spares, rupee
depreciationimpacts the margin of the company ssignificantly.

Risk and Mitigants
Foreign Exchange Risks

A good amount of Import of stocks is done in order to meet the consumables, spares and printers requirement. The
time involved from the date of order, receipt of the stock from the vendor, supply to the customer has remained in
therange of 30 to 45 days. Further, the credit period from the vendoris an average period of 45 days.This time lagis
potentialenough to affect the profitability of your company duetofluctuationin the currency exchange rate.

Mitigants: Your company has a defined policy for managing its foreign exchange exposure. The management
reviews the hedging policy on a quarterly basis and takes appropriate decision from time to time in order to
minimize theimpactof suchvolatility.

Receivable Risks

During the year, the company faced challenges in improving its receivables position. While the average number of
days of sales outstanding improved, the company found a tendency in customers to delay the payments. Delays in
paymentsimpactourability to meet our working capital requirements ontime and puts pressure on our borrowings
therebyincreasingfinance costs.

Mitigants: Your company s carefully monitoring and controlling the financial exposure to those customers whom it
considers as credit risk. Further, the company has introduced stricter credit controls and pursuing customers to
acceptadvance paymentterms.

Inventory Obsolesence Risk

The company needs to maintain printers for a period of more than 48 months. These models are constantly
upgraded by the principal suppliers. Howeverthe company needs to maintain adequate stocks of spares and toners
atallits customerlocationsin order to meet the customerrequirements. These spares may or may not be used. This
leads to a risk of us maintaining obsolete stocks. At times we are required to maintain inventory for demo
equipments, replacement for repairs and normal distribution stocks. Your company faces the risk of obsolescence
intheeventofnotbeingabletosell ordeploythe above stocks.

Mitigants: Your company is conscious of these risks and tracks and monitors its inventory at regular intervals to
minimize obsolescence. Your company continuously monitors the stock levels of such items and ensures they are
withinthereasonable limits.

Industry Risk

Your company is facing stiff competition from other players who are both organized large brand owners and
unorganized local players. This competition forces the company to cut down its margins and reduce price for its
products andservices for both the existing customers and new potential customers.

Mitigants: Your company has put in a focused approach towards monitoring all such competitive activities. Your
company reviews its customer relationship strategy periodically and keeps providinginnovative and new solutions.
Your company is also focusing on moving up the value chain at the customer by providing Document Management
Solutions. Your company believes in providing value to the customers and has putin a dedicated team to manage
theexistingand new customers.
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Report On Corporate Governance
(As required by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange)

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance refers to a combination of laws, regulations, procedures, implicit rules and good
corporate practices which ensure that a company meets obligations to optimize shareholders value and fulfill its
responsibilities to the community, customers, employees, Government and other segments of society.
Emphasizing on transparency, empowerment, accountability and integrity are essential ethics for a good
corporatecitizen.

Your company is fully aware of its responsibilities towards its stakeholders and the benefits of being a good
corporate citizen. Our business modules are revolving around the core values of excellence, integrity,
responsibility, accountability,innovative, law abidingand empowerment.

The Companyisin compliance with the requirements of the guidelines on corporate governance stipulated under
Clause 49 ofthe Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange.

Board of Directors

Astrong Corporate Governance is the key to business sustainability. This is overseen by the Board of Directorsin
respect of strategies, fairnessto stakeholders, strong accounting principles and ethical corporate practices.

Composition of the Board

As on 31st March, 2015 the Board consists of eight Directors. Besides the Chairman and Managing Director, the
Board comprises of four Independent Directors, two Non - Executive Directors and one Small Shareholders and
Independent Director. The composition of the Board as on 31st March, 2015 is in conformity with Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement and exceeds the percentage stipulated therein. Your Directors are eminent persons and
professionals with rich experiencein management, finance and law.

Number of Meetings

« BoardMeeting:
Minimum four prescheduled meetings are held every year. Additional meetings are held to address specific
needs of the Company. In case of any exigency/emergency, resolutions are passed by circulation. During the
Financial Year 2014-15 the Board of Directors met five times on 3rd May 2014, 5th August 2014,
27th October 2014, 13th November 2014 and 14th February 2015. The gap between two meetings did not
exceed four months as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

« AnnualGeneral Meeting:
The last Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company was held on 23rd September, 2014. Five Directors
including the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Statutory Auditor Vinay D Balse attended the Annual
General Meeting.

Directors’ Attendance Record and their Other Directorships/Committee Memberships

As mandated by Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, none of the Directorisa member of more than ten Board level
committees or Chairman of more than five committees across all companies in which he is a Director. Relevant
details of the Board ason 31st March, 2015 are given below:
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The details of Composition, Directors’ attendance and other particulars are as under:

Meel:i: Zf :l::;d the Number of other Directorship and
Name & g Whether | committee Membership / Chairmanship
. Category year 2014-15 attend the
of the Director
R e lastAGM | committee | Committee Other
Membership |Chairmanship | Directorships
Ram N Agarwal |Chairman and Managing| 5 5 Yes 1 - 4
Director
HV Gowthama |Independent Director 5 4 Yes - 3 -
Sudhir Prakash |Independent Director 5 3 No 1 - 10
Shankar Independent Director 5 5 Yes 1 - 2
Jaganathan
Mythily Independent Director 5 3 Yes 1 - -
Ramesh*
Dr.ALRao Non- Executive Director 5 4 No - - 3
GH Visweswara |Non- Executive Director 5 5 Yes 2 - -
B R Ganesh Small Shareholders and 5 5 Yes 2 - 2
Independent Director

Notes: 1. Video/Tele-conferencing facilities were not used for any of the meetings.
2. * Mythily Ramesh was appointed as an Independent Director on 23rd September, 2014 i.e. 19th Annual General Meeting (AGM).

Selection of Independent Directors

The Board is responsible for selection of new directors. The Board delegates the screening and selection process
involved in selecting new directors to the Nomination and Compensation Committee. The Nomination and
Compensation Committeein turn makes recommendationsto the Board on theinclusion of any new director.

The Committee inter-alia, considers qualification, positive attributes, area of expertise and number of
directorships and memberships held in various committees of other companies by such person. The Board
considersthe Committee’srecommendation, and takes appropriate decision.

Every Independent Director, at the first meeting of the Board in which he/she participates as a Director and
thereafter at the first meeting of the Board in every financial year, gives a declaration that he/she meets the
criteriaofindependence as provided in CompaniesAct 2013, ScheduleVand Listing Agreement.

Tenure of Independent Director

Thetenure of the Independent Directors is fixed in accordance with the requirements laid down in the Companies
Act2013 and clarifications/ circularsissued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, in this regard, from time to time.

Code of Conduct:

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Board of Directors viz., all members of
management one level below the Board, including all functional heads. The Code has been communicated to all
the Directors and Members of Senior Management. The code has been circulated to the Directors and
Management Personnel and its compliance is affirmed by them annually. The Annual report contains a
declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director.

WeP Solutions Limited
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The Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics has been suitably modified to include requirements laid
downin Clause 49 Il (E) of the Listing Agreement. The modified Code was adopted by the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on 13th November, 2014. The Code is also available on the Company’s website
www.wepsolutions.co.in.

Materially significant Related Party Transaction:

During the year, there are no materially significant related party transactions with the company’s promoters,
directors, the management and their relatives that may have potential conflict with the interest of the company
atlarge.

There were no instances of non-compliance by the company nor have any penalties, strictures been imposed on
them by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority during the last year on any matter related to
capital market.

All the mandatory requirements specified under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange have
been complied with.

Committees of the Board

As on 31st March, 2015, the Company has three Board Level Committees:
A. Audit Committee

B. Nomination and Compensation Committee

C. Shareholders/Investors' Grievance cum Share Transfer Committee

The Board is responsible for constituting, assigning, co-opting and fixing the terms of reference for members of
various committees. To align with the requirements prescribed for such Board Committees under the provisions
of Companies Act 2013 and the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Board of Directors amended the terms of
references, wherever required of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Compensation Committee and
Shareholders/Investors’ Grievance cum Share Transfer Committee. During the year under review two
Committees namely Shareholders/Investors' Grievance and Share Transfer Committee were merged into one
committee by namingitas Shareholders/Investors' Grievance cum Share Transfer Committee.

Details on the roles and composition of these committees, including the number of meetings held during the
financialyearandtherelated attendance are mentioned below:

Audit Committee

Composition of the Committee:

As on 31st March, 2015, the Audit Committee comprises of Four Directors. Chairman of the Audit Committee is an
Independent Director. During the Financial Year 2014-15, the Audit Committee meetings were held on
3rd May 2014, 5th August 2014, 13th November 2014 and 14th February 2015. The gap between any two meetings
did notexceed four months.

Meetings and attendance during the year are as below:

No. of Meetings
Name of the Member Category Status
Held Attended
HV Gowthama Independent Director Chairman 4 3
B R Ganesh Small Shareholders and Independent Director Member 4 4
Sudhir Prakash Independent Director Member 4 3
Shankar Jaganathan Independent Director Member 4 4

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15 WeP Solutions Limited 39



Report on Corporate Governance

The Committee’s composition meets the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 and Clause 49 of
Listing Agreement. Members of Audit Committee possess financial, accounting expertise and exposure. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee attended the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 23rd September, 2014 to
answer shareholders’ queries.

Powers of Audit Committee:

1.
2.
3.
4,

Toinvestigate any activity withinitsterms of reference.
Toseekinformationfromany employee.

Toobtainoutside legal or other professional advice.

Tosecure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

Functions of the Audit Committee inter-alia, include the following:

1.

Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensurethatthefinancial statementiscorrect, sufficientand credible;

Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and if required the replacement or removal
ofthe Statutory Auditor and the fixation of Audit Fees;

Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors forany other services rendered by the Statutory Auditors;
Reviewing with the management, annual financial statements and auditors report thereon before
submission to the Board forapproval, with particular reference to;

a. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s
reportintermsofclause (c) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the CompaniesAct, 2013,

Changes, ifany,inaccountingpolicies and practices and reasons for the same;
Majoraccountingentriesinvolving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;
Significantadjustments madein thefinancial statements arising out of audit findings;

Compliancewith listingand other legal requirementsrelating to financial statements;

Disclosure of any related party transactions;

Qualificationsinthedraftauditreport;

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency
monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations
tothe Board to take up stepsin this matter;

Review and monitorthe auditor’sindependence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

@ ™~ 0 a0 o

. Approvaloranysubsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties;

9. Scrutiny ofinter-corporate loans and investments, if any;

10.
11.
12.

13.

40

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, whereveritis necessary;

Evaluation ofinternalfinancial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal
controlsystems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency ofinternal audit;
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14. Discussionwithinternalauditors of any significantfindings and follow up there on;

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
mattertotheboard;

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well
as post-auditdiscussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18. Toreview thefunctioningofthe Whistle Blower mechanism;

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole-Time Finance Director or any other person heading the
finance function ordischargingthat function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and background,
etc. ofthe candidate;

20. Carryingoutanyotherfunction asis mentioned inthe terms of reference of the Audit Committee;
21. Reviewingthefollowinginformation:
1. Managementdiscussionand analysisoffinancial condition and results of operations;

2. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by
management;

Management letters/ letters of internal control weaknessesissued by the statutory auditors;
4. Internalauditreportsrelatingtointernal control weaknesses; and
The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Internal Auditor shall be subject to review
by the Audit Committee.
Nomination and Compensation Committee:

Composition of the Committee:

Ason31stMarch,2015, Nomination and Compensation Committee comprises of Four Directors. The Committee’s
constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and Clause 49 of
Listing Agreement. During the Financial Year 2014-15, the Nomination and Compensation Committee meetings
were held on27th October2014,13th November2014 and 14th February 2015.

Meetings and attendance during the year are as below:

No. of Meetings
Name of the Member Category Status

Held Attended
HV Gowthama Chairman Independent Director 3 2
Ram N Agarwal Member Chairman and Managing Director 3 2
G H Visweswara Member Non Executive Director 3 3
B R Ganesh* Member  |Small Shareholders and Independent Director 3 2
Mythily Ramesh** Member Independent Director 3 1

Notes: *B R Ganesh - Ceased to be a member of the Committee with effect from 13th November, 2014.
** Mythily Ramesh - Appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from 13th November, 2014.
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The Nomination and Compensation Committee of the Company, inter - alia, evaluates, recommends to the
Board and approves the Executive Directors’ compensation plans, policies and programmes of the Company.
Nomination and Compensation Committee also has the responsibility foradministering Employees Stock Option
Plan2011 (ESOP-2011) ofthe Company. Theresponsibilities of the committeeinclude:

1.

To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director,
and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial
Personneland otheremployees.

Deciding the terms and conditions of Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP) which inter -alia, include the
following:

¢ Quantumofoptionstobe granted underthe Scheme peremployee andin aggregate;

« VestingPeriod;

« Conditions under which options vested in employees may lapse in case of termination of employment for
misconduct;

» Exercise period within which the employee should exercise the option and that option would lapse on
failure to exercise the option within the exercise period;

« Specified time period within which the employee shall exercise the vested options in the event of
termination orresignation of an employee;

« The right of an employee to exercise all options vested in him at one time or various points within the
exercise period;

« Forfeiture/Cancellation of options granted;

e Allotherissuesincidentaltotheimplementation of Employees Stock Option Plan;
« Toissuegrantletters;

e Toallotsharesupon exercise of vested options.

Compensation Policy:

The compensation paid to Executive Director of the Company is approved by the Board of Directors on the
recommendations of the Nomination and Compensation Committee.

1.

42

Non Executive Directors (including Independent Directors):

Non Executive Directors (including Independent Directors) receives compensation by way of sitting fees for
attending meeting of Board or Committee thereof. Independent Directors are not entitled to stock option of
the Company.

. Executive Director:

Remuneration paid to Executive Director consists of Profit Linked Commission in accordance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act 2013, as approved by the Board and within the overall limits
prescribed by the CompaniesAct2013.
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Compensation paid to Directors:
a. Details of Compensation paidto Directors for the Financial Year 2014-15 are as under:

(in?)
Name of the Director S::t:l:g ::::L);s?:ei Commission| Total ST\Z}:: :qe:'c:t:s
on 31.3.2015

Chairman and Managing Director
Ram N Agarwal* 0 0 132,608 1,32,608 3,205,056
Independent Directors
HV Gowthama 80,000 0 0 80,000 -
Sudhir Prakash 60,000 0 0 60,000 -
Shankar Jaganathan 100,000 0 0l 100,000 2,228
Mythily Ramesh 60,000 0 0 60,000 14,040
Non - Executive Director
Dr.ALRao 80,000 0 0 80,000 385,542
G H Visweswara 100,000 0 0| 100,000 -
Small Shareholders and Independent Director
B R Ganesh 100,000 0 0| 100,000 1,666

Notes:

1. Noneofthe abovedirectorsareeligible for any severance pay, and none of them hold any stock option as on 31st March, 2015.

2. Thenotice periodfor Directorsis such period asis mutually agreed between Director and the Board.

3. During the Financial Year 2014-15, the Company did not advance any loan to any ofits Directors.

4. *Ram N Agarwal appointed as Chairman and Managing Director w.e.f 16th February, 2015. Commission paid is for the period from
16th February, 2015to 31st March, 2015.

b. ManagingDirector - P. K. Gopalakrishnan (For the period from April 2014 to December 2014)

(in%)

Particulars Amount
Remuneration to Managing Director 5,127,508
Contribution to PF and other funds 108,000

Notes: Ceasedto be a Directorw.e.f1st January, 2015.

Shareholders/Investors' Grievance cum Share Transfer Committee

Composition of the Committee:

As on 31st March, 2015, Shareholders/Investors' Grievance cum Share Transfer Committee comprises of Three
Directors. The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and Clause 49 of Listing Agreement. The Committee has the mandate to review and redress
Shareholder Grievances.

Thefollowing Directors are members of the Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance Committee:
HV Gowthama-Chairman

GHVisweswara

BRGanesh
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The Committee ensures cordial investor relations with proper mechanism for redressal of investors’ grievances.
The committee specifically looks into redressing shareholders’/investors’ complaints/grievances pertaining to
sharetransfer, non-receipt of annualreports, nonreceipt of dividend and other allied complaints.

Details of complaints received and resolved to the satisfaction of investors during the year under review
and their break-up are asunder:

Received during the | Disposed of during the | Pending as on

L EHITOEEETT R Financial Year 2014-15 | Financial Year 2014-15 |31st March, 2015

Non - Receipt of Annual Reports 05 05 NIL
Non - Receipt of Dividend Warrants 05 05 NIL
Dematerialization / Rematerialization of Shares NIL NIL NIL

Others (Change in correspondence address,

mailing id, contact details etc) 02 02 NIL

The Committee meets as and when required. The Company obtains Certificate from Share Transfer Agent on
quarterly basis about the pending complaints against the company. As on 31st March, 2015 there were no
complaints pending againstthe company.

General Body Meeting:
a) Detailsof lastthree generalbody meetings held are given below:

Financial Year Category Location of the meeting Date Time

Rotary Club, Lavelle Road,
Bangalore 560001

Conference Hall, Basappa Complex,
Lavelle Road, Bangalore 560001

Conference Hall, Basappa Complex,
Lavelle Road, Bangalore 560001

2013-14 Annual General Meeting 23rd September, 2014 | 4.00 PM

2012-13 Annual General Meeting 16th December, 2013 | 4.00 PM

2011-12 Annual General Meeting 21st September, 2012 | 4.00 PM

b) Extra Ordinary General Meeting:
No Extraordinary General Meeting of Members was held during the year under review.

c) PostalBallots:

During the year under review, in pursuance of Section 110 of Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 22 of
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014, postal ballot was conducted (including e-voting)
seeking approval of shareholders by the way of special resolution for amending the Articles of Association of
the Company containingregulationsin line with the Companies Act2013.

H N Krishnamurthy, Practicing Company Secretary, Bangalore was appointed as the Scrutinizer for
conducting the Postal Ballot process. The result of the Postal Ballot was announced on 18th December, 2014.
Theresult of Postal Ballot was published in Business Standard and Hostadiganta on 20th December, 2014. The
result of Postal Ballot was submitted to Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) as per the provisions of Listing
Agreement.
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No. of Postal % of
. . No. of .
Particulars [ e-voting valid
Votes
Ballots votes
A. Postal Ballot Forms received from the Shareholders of the Company in 32 62,619
Physical Mode
B. Postal Ballot Forms received from the Shareholders of the Company in 39| 13.686.198
Electronic Mode B
C. Total Postal Ballot Forms received (A+B) 71| 13,748,817
D. Postal Ballot forms found invalid/abstained through electronic mode 2 11,671
E. Postal Ballot forms found invalid/abstained through physical mode 1 13
F. Total Postal Ballot Forms found invalid/abstained (D+E) 3 11,684
G. Net Valid Postal Ballot Forms (C-F) 68| 13,737,133
H. Votes in favour of the resolution 67| 13,737,065 99.92
I. Votes against the resolution 1 68 0.00
J. Invalid Votes (Invalid includes abstained from voting) 3 11,684 0.08

The Chairman, after receiving the Scrutinizer’s report announced that the special resolution as proposed in the

Postal Ballot notice was duly passed with requisite majority.

Corporate Governance Compliance Report as on 31st March, 2015 as per Clause 49 of Listing Agreement is

as mentioned below:

. Cla.usre of Compliance
Particulars Listing
Agreement Status
Il |Board of Directors 49(1)
(A) Composition of Board 49(11A) Yes
(B) Independent Directors 49(11B) Yes
(C) Non - Executive Directors’ Compensation and Disclosures 49(11C) Yes
(D) Other Provisions as to Board and Committees 49(1ID) Yes
(E) Code of Conduct 49(IIE) Yes
(F) Whistle Blower Policy 49(1IF) Yes
1l |Audit Committee 49(111)
(A) Qualified and Independent Audit Committee 49(111A) Yes
(B) Meeting of Audit Committee 49(111B) Yes
(C) Powers of Audit Committee 49(I11C) Yes
(D) Role of Audit Committee 49(11ID) Yes
(E) Review of Information by Audit Committee 49(IIIE) Yes
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. Cla‘\us.e of Compliance
Particulars Listing
Agreement Status
IV [Nomination and Remuneration Committee 49(IV) Yes
V |Subsidiary Companies 49(V) Yes
VI |Risk Management 49(VI) Yes
VIl |Related Party Transactions 49(VIl) Yes
VIl |Disclosures 49(VIll)
(A) Related Party Transactions 49(VIIIA) Yes
(B) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 49(VIIIB) Yes
(C) Remuneration of Directors 49(VIIIC) Yes
(D) Management 49(VIID) Yes
(E) Shareholders 49(VIIIE) Yes
(F) Proceeds from public issues, rights issue, preferential rights etc. 49(VIIIF) Yes
IX |[CEO/CFO Certification 49(IX) Yes
X |Report on Corporate Governance 49(X) Yes
Xl |Compliance 49(XI) Yes
Disclosures:

Related Party Transactions Policy:

The Board of Directors of the Company has on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, adopted a policy to
regulate transactions between the Company and its related parties in compliance with applicable provisions of
the Companies Act 2013, rules thereunder and Clause 49 of SEBI Listing Agreement. The Policy was considered
and approved by the Board atits Meeting held on 13th November, 2014. The policy has also been uploaded on the
website of the Company at www.wepsolutions.co.in

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment:

The Company has followed the treatment laid down in the Accounting Standards prescribed by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl), in preparation of financial statements. There are no audit qualificationsin
the Company’sfinancial statements forthe yearunderreview.

Whistle Blower Policy:

In May 2013, the Board adopted the revised Whistleblower Policy that adopts global best practices. We have
established a mechanism for employees to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud,
orviolation of our Code of Conduct and Ethics. It also provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization
of employees who avail of the mechanism, and allows direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in
exceptional cases. We further affirm that no employee has been denied access to the Audit Committee during
fiscalyear2014.The policy hasalso been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.wepsolutions.co.in

Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy:

We recognize the rights of our employees and provide forums, support group and policies to hear and address
their concerns, and resolve issues and conflicts in a fair and transparent manner. Our Anti-Sexual Harrasment
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Policy allows employees to report sexual harassment cases at the workplace. These cases are heard and resolved
by an unbiased group. An Internal Committee looks into all the complaints of sexual harassment. The policy has
alsobeenuploaded onthe website of the Company at www.wepsolutions.co.in

Code of Prevention of Insider Trading Practices:

The Company's shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE). With the intention of preventing
insider trading in the securities of the Company, the Company has implemented an ‘Insider Trading Policy’ in
accordance with the terms of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992, as amended. As a part of the policy, the Company's Directors and specified executives are
advised of the closed periods in respect of dealing / transacting in the securities of the Company prior to the
announcement of the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company and other price sensitive
information.

CFO Certification:

The CFO certification on the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year is placed at the end of
Corporate Governance Report.

Shareholder Information:
Means of Communication:

The company’s quarterly and annual financial results in the proforma prescribed by the stock exchanges are
approved and taken on record by the Board within the prescribed time frame and sent forthwith to Bombay Stock
Exchange in which the company’s shares are listed. The quarterly results of the Company are published in the
newspaper on the approval by the Board and also uploaded on the Company’s website www.wepsolutions.co.in.
The financial results are published in “Business Standard” and “Hosa Digantha” in vernacular (Kannada)
newspaper.

Information about the company in general, its financial results and other information including official press
releases canbeaccessed atthe company’s website www.wepsolutions.co.in

Annual Report:

The Annual Report containing, inter-alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Directors’ Report, Auditor’s Report and other
importantinformationis circulated to members and others entitled thereto.

The Report on Management Discussion and Analysis forms part of this Annual Report.

CFO certification forms part of this Annual Report

Auditor’s Certificate on compliance of provisions of Corporate Governance forms part of this Annual Report

BSE Corporate Compliance and Listing Centre (the ‘Listing Centre’):

BSE’s Listing Centre is a web-based application designed for corporates. All periodical compliance filings like
Shareholding Pattern, Corporate Governance Report, Media releases among others are also filed electronically
onthelListing Centre.

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES):

The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-based complaints redress system. The salient
features of this system are centralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs) by
concerned companies and onlineviewing by investors of actions taken on the complaintandits current status.
Duringtheyearunderreview,one complaint was registered through Scores pertaining to non-receipt of Dividend.
The same stands redressed satisfactorily.
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Compliance with Regulations:

The Company has complied with the requirements of the regulatory authorities on Capital Markets, neither has
there been any instances of non-compliance by the Company on any matters related to the Capital Markets, nor
has any penalty or strictures been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory
authority, on any matterrelated to capital marketsduringlast three years.

Dividend Payment:

Final Dividend of 5% (% 0.50- Fifty Paisa only per equity share) was paid on 26th September, 2014 for the Financial
Year2013-14.

Dates of Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend:

By virtue of the provision laid down under the Companies Act 2013, the amount of Dividend remaining
unpaid/unclaimed for the period of seven years from the date of its transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account of the
Company shall be required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) administered
by the Central Government. Given below is the date of declaration of Dividend and corresponding date when
unpaid/unclaimed dividend are due fortransferto the IEPF.

Dividend Declaredinthe past:

. . - - . Due Date for
Financial Year | Type of Dividend Dividend Rate Date of Declaration transfer to IEPF
Final Dividend
- 0,
2013-14 (First Dividend) 5% 23rd September, 2014 22nd September, 2021

Members who have not encashed their Dividend Warrants are requested to have them revalidated and encashed
to avoidtransferto IEPF.

Employee Stock Option Plan

Theinformation on Options granted by the Company during the Financial Year 2014-15 and other particulars with
regard to Employee Stock Options aresetoutin the Directors’ Report.

General Shareholder Information:

The Company’s financial year begins on 1st April and ends on 31st March of the subsequent year. Company’s
shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). Quarterly financial results of the company are filed with the
Bombay Stock Exchange within the stipulated time. The results are also published in leading financial
newspapers and in a vernacular newspaper after the approval of the financials by the Audit Committee/Board.
Thefinancial results are also uploaded on the company’s website (www.wepsolutions.co.in).

Annual General Meeting Thursday, 27th August, 2015

Time 4.00 PM.

Venue Rotary Club, Lavelle Road, Bangalore 560 001

Book Closure Dates 21st August, 2015 to 27th August, 2015

Listing Details Company’s shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

Scrip Code : 532373
Scrip Name : WEPSOLN
ISIN Code : INE434B01029

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company  [L72200KA1995PLC025617
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Market Price Data (Source: www.bseindia.com)
Month Open High Low Close No. of Shares
Apr 14 6.66 7.59 6.38 6.38 9,438
May 14 6.25 12.45 6.10 12.45 180,442
Jun 14 12.25 12.94 10.12 10.91 105,796
Jul 14 10.71 11.10 9.90 10.20 102,718
Aug 14 10.00 12.06 8.20 12.06 167,353
Sep 14 12.66 18.24 11.86 14.28 250,931
Oct 14 14.99 23.06 14.00 15.77 302,336
Nov 14 15.80 17.00 13.90 15.00 73,881
Dec 14 15.75 19.10 13.60 16.20 823,094
Jan 15 14.60 20.90 12.60 18.05 236,231
Feb 15 21.00 21.00 13.55 14.50 182,281
Mar 15 15.90 15.90 12.20 13.50 68,755

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents:

WeP appointed Cameo Corporate Services Limited as its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. Details of the
Registrarand Share Transfer Agent are given below:

Cameo Corporate Services Limited,

“Subramanian Building” V Floor, No.1, Club House Road, Chennai - 600 002

Tel: +(91) (044) 28460390 Fax : +(91) (044) 28460129 E-mail: investor@cameoindia.com

Share Transfer System:

Allshare transfer and other communication regarding share certificates, change of address, dividend etc., should
be sent to our Registrar and Share Transfer Agents. All shares transfer is completed within statutory time limit
from the date of receipt provided the documents meet the stipulated requirements of statutory provisions in all
respects. The Company obtains from a Practicing Company Secretary half yearly certificate of compliance with
the share transfer formalities as required under Clause 47(c) of the Listing Agreement, and files a copy of the same
with Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE).

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

Vinay B L, Practicing Company Secretary, Bangalore carries out the Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit as
mandated by SEBI, and provides report on reconciliation of total issued and listed capital with that of total share
capital admitted / held in dematerialized form with NSDL and CDSL and those held in physical form. The Audit is
carried on quarterly basis and the report thereof is submitted to the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE), where the
Company’ssharesarelisted andis also placed before the Board.
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Distribution of shareholdings according to number of shares held as on 31st March, 2015.

Valt;‘eesl::::; res No. of Shareholders | % of Shareholders of S‘I::::zshel d ;/:i:io::i::it:all
0-5,000 1,779 51.00 1,789,830 0.78
5,001 - 10,000 250 7.17 1,918,640 0.83
10,001 - 20,000 564 16.17 7,054,070 3.07
20,001 - 30,000 306 8.77 6,773,990 2.94
30,001 - 40,000 88 2.52 3,040,980 1.32
40,001 - 50,000 9% 2.75 4,201,340 1.83
50,001 - 100,000 213 6.11 14,630,720 6.36
100,001 - And Above 192 5.50 190,625,150 82.87

TOTAL 3,488 100.00 230,034,720 100.00
Shareholding Patternasat31st March,2015.
Total
Category of Shareholder LRG| Total No. a::a;::‘:::::::e
Shareholders of shares of total number
of shares
(A) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTER AND PROMOTER GROUP
Individuals 4 3,667,149 15.94
Bodies Corporate 3 6,123,567 26.62
Total Promoters’ Holding 7 9,790,716 42.56
(B) PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
Bodies Corporate 61 2,355,385 10.24
Individuals
I. Individuals Shareholders Holding Nominal Share Capital upto 3,174 3,766,191 16.36
Rs. 1 lakh
IIl. Individual Shareholders Holding Nominal Share Capital in 162 6,044,503 26.28
excess of Rs. 1 lakh
Clearing Members 4 1,237 0.01
Hindu Undivided Families 44 126,309 0.55
Non Residents Indians 34 919,030 4.00
Trusts 2 101 0.00
Total Public Shareholding 3,481 13,212,756 57.44
Total (A)+(B) 3,488 23,003,472 100.00

Note: Total number of shares and percentage shareholding by Non- Resident Shareholders is 919,030 and 4.00 % respectively. The
Company has notissued any ADRs and GDRs. The foreign shareholding consists of holding by NRIs and other foreign national only.
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Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity

The Company’s shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic mode. In India there are two depositories i.e.
National Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). To
facilitate tradingin DEMAT form, Company has established connectivity with both the depositories. Shareholders
can open their accounts with any of the Depository Participant registered with these depositories. The
International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to our shares under the Depository System is
INE434B01029. As on 31st March, 2015 - 22,049,968 Equity Shares of the company representing 95.85% of the
total subscribed capital of the company were dematerialized.

Shares held in DEMAT and Physical mode as on 31st March, 2015 are as follows:

Category Number of Shareholders No. of Shares % to total equity
DEMAT Mode
a.NSDL 2,198 21,210,694 92.00
b. CDSL 533 839,274 3.65
DEMAT Total (A) 2,731 22,049,968 95.85
Physical Mode (B) 757 953,504 4.15
Grand Total (A+B) 3,488 23,003,472 100.00

Consolidation of folios and avoidance of multiple mailing:

In order to enable the company to reduce cost and duplicity of efforts for providing services to the investors,
members who have more than one folio in the same order of names, are requested to consolidate their holdings
under one folio. Members may write to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent indicating the folio numbers along
with the original share certificates to be consolidated. To enable us to serve our investors better, we request
shareholders whose shares are in physical mode to dematerialize their shares and update their bank account
details with the respective depository participants.

Service of documents through e-mail:

In terms of provisions of the Companies Act 2013, service of documents on members by a company is allowed
through electronic mode. Further SEBI, vide its Circular Ref. No. CIR/CFD/2011 dated 5th October, 2011, has also
directed listed companies to supply soft copies of full Annual Reports to all those shareholders who have
registered their e-mail addresses for the purpose. Accordingly, the Company proposes to send documents like
Shareholders Meeting notice/other notices, Audited Financial Statements, Directors’ Report, Auditor’s Report or
any other document, to its member in electronic form at the email address as registered with the Share Transfer
Agent. This will definitely help in prompt receipt of communication, reduce paper consumption and save trees as
wellasavoid loss of documentsin transit.

Members who have not yet registered their e-mail addresses (including those who wish to change their already
registered e-mailid) may get the same registered/updated with the Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

Outstanding GDRs /ADRs /Warrants [ Options
The Company has no outstanding GDRs, ADRs, Warrants or Optionsason31st March,2015.

Plant Locations:

« Karnataka (Mysore CWH): No.312-313,Hebbal Industrial Area, Mysore-570016.
« Himachal Pradesh: Plot87,EPIP,Phasel, Jharmarjri, Dist: Solan, Himachal Pradesh - 174103.

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15 WeP Solutions Limited 51



Report on Corporate Governance

Address for Investors’ Correspondence
A. Forchangeofaddressandbank mandate:

« In case of Shares held in dematerialised form: Shareholder should contact their respective Depository
Participant.

« In case of Shares held in physical form: Shareholders should contact the Company’s Share Transfer Agent
- Cameo Corporate Services Limited, “Subramanian Building” V Floor, No.1, Club House Road, Chennai -
600 002. Tel: +(91) (044) 28460390 ; Fax : +(91) (044) 28460129;

E-mail :investor@cameoindia.com

B. Forallmattersrelatingtoinvestorrelationscontact:

Sujata Arvind Lele, Company Secretary
WeP Solutions Limited,40/1A Basappa Complex, Lavelle Road, Bangalore 560 001, Karnataka State.

Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance
To,
The Members of WeP Solutions Limited,

| have examined the relevant records of WeP Solutions Limited (the Company) for the purpose of certifying
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with Bombay
Stock Exchange forthe Financial Yearended 31st March, 2015.

| have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and belief were
necessary forthe purpose of certification.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.
My examination was limited to the procedure and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring
the compliance of the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on
thefinancial statementsofthe Company.

On the basis of my examination of the records produced, explanations and information furnished, | certify that
the Company has complied with the mandatory conditions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the managementhas conducted the affairs of the Company.

S. Kannan
Place: Bangalore FCS: 6261
Date: 24th July, 2015 CP No.: 13016
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Declaration regarding Compliance by Board Members and Senior Management Personnel with the
Company’s Code of Conduct pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

This is to certify that pursuant to Clause 49 Il (E) (2) of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, the
Company has laid down Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the
Company.

Further certified that the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
having complied withthe Code applicable tothem duringtheyearended 31st March,2015.

Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Bangalore Ram N Agarwal
Date: 25th July, 2015 Chairman and Managing Director

ChiefFinancial Officer (CFO) Certification

I, Sandeep Kumar Goyal, Chief Financial Officer, WeP Solutions Limited, to the best of my knowledge and belief,
certify that:

a) | have reviewed balance sheet and profit and loss account for the year ended 31st March, 2015 and all its
schedules and notes on accounts, as well as the cash flow statement and directors’ report and to the best of
my knowledge and beliefreportthat:

i. These statement do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statementsthat mightbe misleading;

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations;

b) Therearetothe bestof my knowledge and belief, no transaction entered into by the company during the year
whichisfraudulent,illegal orviolative of the company’s code of conduct;

c) | am responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and | have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and |
have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design and operation of such
internal controls, if any, of whichlam aware and I have taken proper steps to rectify these deficiencies.

d) lhavedisclosedtotheauditorsandAudit Committee

i. Significantchangesintheinternal controloverfinancial reportingduringtheyear;

ii. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the
notestothefinancial statements; and

ii. Instances of significant fraud of which | have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over
financial reporting.

Place: Bangalore Sandeep Kumar Goyal
Date: 18th May, 2015 Chief Financial Officer
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Reportonthe standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of WEP SOLUTIONS LIMITED (“the
Company”), which comprise th Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
otherexplanatoryinformation.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”), with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements, that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company, in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accountingrecords, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements, that give a
true andfairview and are free from material misstatement, whetherdueto fraud orerror.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Ourresponsibility isto express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on ouraudit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report, under the provisions of the Act and Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our auditin accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtainreasonable assurance aboutwhether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosuresin
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessment, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements, that give a true and fair view, in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the
Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
auditopinion onthestandalonefinancial statement.

Opinion

In ouropinion and to the best of ourinformation and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act, in the manner so required, and
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give atrue and fairview, in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for the years ended on that

date.

5. ReportonOtherLegaland Regulatory Requirements
A. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”) issue by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, the extent
applicable.

B. AsrequiredbySection 143(3) ofthe Act, we reportthat:

(i)

(ii)

For N.M. RALJI

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

Inour opinion, proper books of account, as required by law, have been kept by the Company, so far
asitappearsfromourexamination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement, dealt with by
thisReport, arein agreementwith the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Account)
Rules,2014.

Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2015, taken
onrecord by the Boards of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2015 from
beingappointed asadirectorinterms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the other mattersto beincluded in the Auditor’s Reportin accordance with Rule 11

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements- refernote-2.28(b) tothefinancial statements;

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

& CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm registration NO: 108296W

Vinay D. Balse
Partner

Membership No. 39434

Place: Mumba

Date: May 18, 2015
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in Paragraph 5(A) of our report of even date)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Fixed Assets.

(b) Inaccordance with the phased programme for verification of fixed assets, certain items of fixed assets,
were physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(a) Stocks of inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management. The Company
has a perpetualinventory system. In our opinion, the frequency of such verificationis reasonable.

(b) The procedures for physical verification of inventory followed by the management are reasonable and
adequateinrelationtothesize ofthe Company andthe nature of its business.

(c) The Company has maintained proper records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on verification
between the physical stock and the book stock were not material in relation to the operations of the
Company and have been properly dealt with inthe books of account.

Accordingto the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Consequently, clause iii (a) and ii (b) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal
control systems, commensurate with the size of the Company and nature of its business, for the purchase of
inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the
Orderisnotrequired.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by

the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013,and of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts have been made and maintained.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

56

books of account, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax,
Custom Duty, Excise Duty, value added tax, Cess and any other dues, during the year, with the
appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of the
books of account, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, value added tax,
Cess were in arrears, as at March 31, 2015, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the Company examined
by us, there are no dues of Sales Tax, Income Tax, Customs Duty, Service Tax, Wealth Tax, Excise Duty and
Cesswhich have not been deposited on accountof any dispute.
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(d) Accordingtotheinformation and explanations given to us and based on the examination of records, no
amount was required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund, in accordance with
therelevant provisions ofthe CompaniesAct,2013 and rules made there under.

(viii) The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not incurred
cashlossesinthefinancialyearandintheimmediately precedingfinancial year.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institutions or banks. The Company does not have any
outstandingdebentures.

(x) The Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from bank or financial institutions,
consequently, clause (x) of the Orderisnot applicable to the Company.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, term loans availed by the Company have been
used forthe purpose forwhichthe loans were obtained.

(xii) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
materialfraud on or by the Company was noticed or reported during the year.

For N.M. RALJI & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration NO: 108296W

Vinay D. Balse
Partner
Membership No. 39434

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2015
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WeP Solutions Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31,2015 (inR)
Particulars Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2015| March 31,2014
| EQUITYAND LIABILITIES
1 |Shareholders' Funds
a) ShareCapital 2.1 230,040,545 230,040,545
b) Reserves&Surplus 2.2 68,953,833 76,433,525
298,994,378 306,474,070
2 |NoncurrentLiabilites
a) LongTermBorrowings 2.3 - 9,375,000
b) OtherLongTerm Liabilities 2.4 18,512,626 17,015,531
c) LongTerm Provisions 2.5 19,268,279 17,672,300
37,780,905 44,062,831
3 |[CurrentLiabilites
a) ShortTermBorrowings 2.6 114,257,440 101,520,651
b) TradePayables 2.7 193,878,579 117,652,030
c) OtherCurrentLiabilities 2.8 76,224,786 100,822,844
d) ShortTerm Provisions 2.9 23,202,702 26,937,574
407,563,507 | 346,933,099
TOTAL 744,338,790 | 697,470,000
I |ASSETS
1 |NoncurrentAssets
a) FixedAssets 2.10
i) Tangibleassets 228,692,626 233,592,807
ii) Intangibleassets 1,049,980 2,554,921
iii) Capitalworkin progress - 291,976
b) Deferredtaxassets(Net) 2.11 31,435,923 24,656,344
c) LongtermLoansandAdvances 2.12 17,054,098 20,759,887
d) OtherNoncurrentassets 2.13 6,664,536 1,536,296
284,897,163 283,392,231
2 |[CurrentAssets
a) Inventories 2.14 224,459,278 213,214,721
b) TradeReceivables 2.15 196,091,693 164,801,980
¢) Cashandcashequivalents 2.16 419,051 106,164
d) Shorttermloansandadvances 2.17 38,471,605 35,954,904
459,441,627 414,077,769
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Note No. 2.1 to 2.35 form an integral part of these
Financial Statements
TOTAL 744,338,790 697,470,000

As per our report attached
For N M Raiji & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 108296W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Vinay D Balse
Partner
Membership No. : 39434

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18,2015

58 WeP Solutions Limited

HV Gowthama Ram N Agarwal
Director Chairman
Sandeep Goyal Sujata Lele

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Darjeeling
Date: May 18,2015
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2015 (in%)
Particulars Note For the For the
No. year ended year ended
March 31, 2015 | March 31,2014
REVENUE
| Revenue from Operations 2.18 1,041,765,908 1,160,848,224
Il |Otherlncome 2.19 5,322,363 10,181,010
Total Revenue (1+I1) 1,047,088,271 1,171,029,234
Il |EXPENDITURE
a) CostofMaterialsconsumed 2.20 328,873,116 399,554,077
b) PurchasesofStockintrade 2.21 290,615,610 227,278,495
c) Changesininventories of finished goods, work in
progress and stock in trade 2.22 (12,940,624) 40,117,028
d) Employee Benefits expense 2.23 91,365,810 107,421,077
e) Other expenses 2.25 244,087,324 275,319,860
Total Expenses 942,001,236 1,049,690,537
IV | Profit Before Depreciation, Interest, Exceptionalltem and Tax 105,087,035 121,338,697
f) Depreciationand amortization expense 65,036,830 72,683,149
V | ProfitBefore Interest, Exceptional ltem and Tax 40,050,205 48,655,548
g) Finance costs 2.24 17,670,272 20,440,629
VIl |ProfitBefore Tax 22,379,933 28,214,919
VIl |Taxexpense
a) CurrentTax 8,822,689 8,091,085
b) MAT Creditentitlement - (1,344,330)
c) Deferred Tax (2,252,224) 591,097
VIl | Profit/(Loss)fortheyear/period 15,809,468 20,877,067
Earnings Per Share
(Equity Shares parvalue Rs 10/-each)
- Basic 0.69 0.91
- Diluted 0.68 0.91
Number of sharesused in computingearnings pershare
- Basic 23,003,472 23,003,472
- Diluted 23,084,395 23,013,335
Significant Accounting Policies 1

Note No. 2.1 to 2.35 form an integral part of these
Financial Statements

As per our report attached
For N M Raiji & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 108296W

Vinay D Balse
Partner
Membership No. : 39434

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 18, 2015
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

HV Gowthama

Director

Sandeep Goyal
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Darjeeling
Date: May 18,2015

Ram N Agarwal
Chairman

Sujata Lele
Company Secretary
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WeP Solutions Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31,2015

(in%)
Particulars March-2015 March-2014
A | CashFlow From OperatingActivities
Profit/(Loss) before tax 22,379,933 28,214,919
Adjustment for:
Depreciation & Amortisation 65,036,830 72,683,149
Provision fordoubtful debts (373,671) 12,224,834
Loss/ (Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets 820,559 841,096
Interest Expense 17,670,272| 83,153,989| 20,440,629| 106,189,708
Operating profit before working capital changes 105,533,922 134,404,627
Working Capital Changes
(Increase) / Decreasein Inventories (11,244,557) 46,646,995
(Increase) / Decreasein Trade Receivables (30,916,041) 129,842,400
(Increase) / Decreasein Other CurrentAssets (2,801,173) 82,893,298
(Increase) / Decreasein Non Current Assets (1,422,451) (6,005,668)
Increase /(Decrease) in Trade Payables 76,226,549 (220,735,409)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (28,769,299) 15,222,783
Increase/ (Decrease) in Non Current Liabilities 3,093,075 1,351,968
4,166,103 49,216,367
Cash Generated from Operations 109,700,025 183,620,994
Directtaxes paid (8,538,216) (10,592,050)
Net Cash From OperatingActivities 101,161,809 173,028,944
B | CashFlowFromInvestingActivities
Purchase of Fixed Assetsincluding Capital workin progress| (73,450,136) (177,938,077)
Proceedsfrom Sale of Fixed Assets 366,153 1,536,922
(73,083,983) (176,401,155)
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (73,083,983) 176,401,155)
C | CashFlowFromFinancingActivities
Paymentof Dividend including Tax (13,456,456) -
Interest paid (17,670,272) (20,440,629)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borrowings 3,361,789 23,066,352
(27,764,939) 2,625,723
Net Cash From/ (Used for) FinancingActivities (27,764,939) 2,625,723
Net Increase [/ (Decrease) In Cash And Cash
Equivalents - (A+B+C) 312,887 (746,488)
CashAnd Cash Equivalents At The Beginning of The Year 106,164 852,652
Cash And Cash Equivalents At The End Of The Year 419,051 106,164

As per our report attached
For N M Raiji & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 108296W

Vinay D Balse
Partner
Membership No. : 39434

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18,2015
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

HV Gowthama
Director

Sandeep Goyal

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Darjeeling

Date: May 18,2015

WeP Solutions Limited

Ram N Agarwal
Chairman

Sujata Lele

Company Secretary
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Significant accounting policies and notes onaccounts
1. Significantaccountingpolicies

1.1 Basisofpreparationoffinancialstatements
The Financial Statements are prepared as a going-concern under the historical cost convention on an
accrual basis and in accordance with the provision of Section 129 and other provisions of the
CompaniesAct,2013.

1.2 UseofEstimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to
accounting estimate is recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
period affected.

1.3 Fixed assets, intangible assets, leased assets and work-in-progress
Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Costs include expenditure
directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost.
Intangible assets are stated at the consideration paid for acquisition less accumulated amortization.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets outstanding as of each balance sheet date is
shown as capital advance and the cost of fixed assets not ready for use as on that date are disclosed as
capitalworkin progress.
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
operating leases. Lease rentals in respect of assets taken under operating leases are charged to the
Profitand Loss Accounton a straight line basis overthe lease term.

1.4 Depreciationand amortization
Depreciation on fixed assets is provided at the rates prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies
Act,2013, or at the rates determined based on the useful life of the asset, as estimated by the
management, whichever is higher. Depreciation is provided based on the straight line method. The
rates adopted for the depreciation determined on the basis of the estimated useful life of fixed assets
areasfollows:

Assets Useful Life applied (in Years)
Computers 3.00
Furniture and Fixtures - Owned Premises 10.00
Furniture and Fixtures - Leased Premises 5.00
Office Equipment 5.00
Plant and Equipments including Electrical installations 4.00
Computer Peripherals - on Use and Pay 4.00
Vehicles 8.00
Air Conditioners 4.00
Moulds, Dies & Patterns 5.00
Building 30.00
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1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Individual Assets costing less than¥ 5,000 are depreciated in fullin the year of purchase.

Depreciation for assets purchased /sold duringthe period is proportionately charged.

Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basisasfollows:

Asset Amortization
Computer Software Purchased - ERP Systems 4.00
Computer Software 2.00
Technical Know-how 5.00

In case of Fixed assets having a Written Down Value as on April 1, 2014, where the useful life has been
increased in line with Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the written down value is charged off as
depreciation overtherevised balance useful life of the respective assets.

Impairment of Assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. An
impairment loss is charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as
impaired. Impairment loss recognised in the preceding accounting period is adjusted if there has been
achangeinthe estimate of recoverable amount.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds for the acquisition, production or
construction of an asset that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use are capitalised as part of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the
periodinwhichtheyareincurred.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, including necessary provision for
obsolescence. Costis determined using the weighted average method.

Contingencies and events occurring after the Balance Sheet date

Accounting for contingencies (gain or loss) arising out of contractual obligations are made only on the
basis of mutual acceptance.

Events occurring after the date of Balance Sheet are considered upto the date of approval of the
accounts by the Board of Directors, where material.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the
date of thetransaction orwhich approximates the actualrate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies as at the year end are restated at the year end rates.
In case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end
rate and rate on the date of the contractis recognised as exchange difference and the premium paid on
forward contractsis recognized overthe life of the contract.

Non monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

1.10 Revenue Recognition

Sales of Product/Service are accounted net of Excise duty, Sales Tax /VAT, Service Tax and discounts on
accrual basis.

WeP Solutions Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15
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Agency Commission is accrued on shipment of consignment by Principal and Other income is
recognised on accrual basis.

1.11 Employee Benefits

Gratuity: The Company provides gratuity benefit to the employees which is defined benefit plan and
the obligation of the companyis calculated on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Leave Accrual: The Company allows accumulation/encashment of leave. Such accumulation can be
utilized by obtaining leave in the subsequent period of employment or at the time of separation for a
specified period. The obligation as on the balance sheet date is provided on the basis of actuarial
valuation.

1.12 Tax Expense

Current tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax
credits computed in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961, and based on
expected outcome of assessments/appeals.

Deferred tax is recognised on timing difference between taxable and accounting income for the year
and quantified using the tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on the balance
sheetdate.

Deferred tax asset relating to unabsorbed depreciation / business losses/ losses under the head
capital gains” are recognised and carried forward to the extent that there is a virtual certainty that
sufficient future taxableincome will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.
Other deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
canberealised.

1.13 Provisions and Contingentliabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, and itis
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
canbe made oftheamountof obligation.

Adisclosure fora contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or
apresentobligationin respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosureismade.

Legal provisions are made as per the requirements of the applicable legislation. Warranty provision is
arrived at considering the warranty period and the rate of failures determined from historical
information. They representthe best estimate of likely expenses during the unexpired warranty period.

1.14 Research &Development

The Company incurs certain expenditure for new product development or upgradation of features in
the existing products. Any revenue expenditure incurred is charged off during the period in which itis
incurred. Any capital expenditureis shown as addition to fixed assets.

Notes on Accounts for the year ended March 31,2015
Allfigures are reported in Rupees, except data relating to number of Equity Shares or unless stated otherwise

The Previous period figures have been regrouped/reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to the
current period presentation.
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2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2 Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Equity Shares

Share Capital

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Authorised
30,000,000 (PY:30,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 300,000,000 300,000,000
300,000,000 300,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
23,003,472 (PY 23,003,472) Equity shares of¥10 each fully 230,034,720 230,034,720
paid up (of the above 22,213,645 shares have been allotted
within the last five years for consideration other than cash.)
Forfeited Shares (Equity shares of¥5 each paid up) 5,825 5,825
TOTAL 230,040,545 230,040,545
Thereconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Sharesoutstandingatthe beginningoftheyear 23,003,472 11,261,508
Shareslssued duringtheyear - 11,741,964
SharesForfeiture during the year - -
Sharesoutstanding at the end of the year 23,003,472 23,003,472

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is
entitled to one vote per equity share. The shareholders are entitled to dividend declared on proportionate
basis. On liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders would be eligible to receive the remaining
assets of the Company afterdistribution of all preferentialamountin proportion to their shareholding.

2.1.3 Sharesinthe Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent of the Shares:

Name of share holders As at As at

March 31, 2015 | March 31,2014

RNAWEP Investments Private Limited

No of Shares 3,248,109 3,228,309

% Holding 14.12% 14.03%

Ram N Agarwal

No of Shares 3,205,056 3,194,856

% Holding 13.94% 13.89%

WeP Peripherals Limited

No of Shares 2,124,994 2,124,994

% Holding 9.24% 9.24%

Wipro Limited

No of Shares 1,836,000 1,836,000

% Holding 7.98% 7.98%

WeP Solutions Limited
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Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Capital Reserve
OpeningBalance 30,428,459 30,428,459
ClosingBalance 30,428,459 30,428,459
Subsidy from Govt
Openingbalance 899,000 899,000
Closingbalance 899,000 899,000
Securities Premium Account
OpeningBalance 6,675,000 6,675,000
ClosingBalance 6,675,000 6,675,000
Surplusin Statement of Profitand Loss Account
Openingbalance 38,431,066 31,010,454
Less: Adjustment for depreciation (Refer Note 2.27) 9,432,481 -
Add:- Currentyear profit/(loss) 15,809,468 20,877,068
Profit available for appropriation 44,808,053 51,887,522
Less:- Appropriations
Proposed Final Dividend on Equity Shares (5%) 11,501,736 11,501,736
Taxon Dividend 2,354,943 1,954,720
Closingbalance 30,951,374 38,431,066
TOTAL 68,953,833 76,433,525
2.3 LongTermBorrowing
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 | March 31,2014
Secured-
Term Loan from bank - 21,875,000
Currentmaturities of longterm borrowing - (12,500,000)
(Secured by hypothecation of the assets under Use and Pay block
of fixed assets and a Corporate Guarantee from a shareholder)
(Repayable in 16 Quarterly Installments commencing from Feb 2012)
TOTAL - 9,375,000
2.4 OtherLongTerm Liabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Customer and Dealer Deposits 18,512,626 17,015,531
TOTAL 18,512,626 17,015,531
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2.5 LongTermProvisions

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Employee Benefits 7,037,361 6,837,402
Warranty Liability (Refer Note No. 2.26) 12,230,918 10,834,898
TOTAL 19,268,279 17,672,300
2.6 ShortTermBorrowings
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
a) Secured
Loansrepayable on Demand
From Banks
Cash CreditAccount 114,257,440 101,520,651
(Secured by Hypothecation of Current Assets)
TOTAL 114,257,440 101,520,651
2.7 TradePayables
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 | March 31,2014
OtherTrade Payables 193,878,579 117,652,030
TOTAL 193,878,579 117,652,030
2.8 OthercCurrentLiabilities
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 | March 31,2014
Currentmaturities of longterm borrowing - 12,500,000
For Expenses 65,979,395 69,546,062
Advance from customers 371,523 2,450,703
Incomereceivedinadvance 4,164,895 8,231,521
Statutory payables 4,732,860 6,799,249
Otherpayables 976,113 1,295,309
TOTAL 76,224,786 100,822,844
2.9 ShortTermProvisions
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Warranty Liability (Refer Note No.2.26) 7,535,708 11,631,408
ForDividend payment 13,856,679 13,456,456
Employee Benefits 1,810,316 1,849,710
TOTAL 23,202,702 26,937,574

WeP Solutions Limited
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2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

Deferred Tax

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Deferred Tax Asset
Provision fordoubtful debts 20,979,316 21,100,554
Expenses allowed on actual paymentbasisu/s43B of ITAct 1961 3,177,235 4,093,844
Depreciation Difference 6,852,304 -
Amortisation of Demerger expenditure u/s35DD of L.T.Act 1961 427,068 964,501
Less: Deferred Tax Liability
Depreciation Difference - 1,502,555
Net Deferred Tax Asset 31,435,923 24,656,344
Long Term Loans and Advances
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Unsecured - Considered good
Capital Advance - 1,175,000
Deposits 17,054,098 19,584,887
TOTAL 17,054,098 20,759,887
Other Non CurrentAssets
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 | March 31,2014
Unsecured - Considered good
Margin Money Deposits with Bank 6,625,144 1,450,847
Interest Accrued on Fixed Deposits 39,392 85,449
TOTAL 6,664,536 1,536,296
Inventories
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 | March 31,2014
Raw Materials
-In Stock 31,892,868 31,766,813
-InTransit 2,024,044 368,798
WorkinProgress 12,719,705 6,811,267
StockinTrade
-In Stock 82,604,488 59,628,492
-InTransit 2,988,133 9,384,752
Finished Goods
-In Stock 28,302,191 28,304,270
-InTransit 87,000 9,632,112
Sparesand Consumables
-In Stock 57,771,533 67,303,967
-InTransit 6,069,316 14,250
TOTAL 224,459,278 213,214,721

WeP Solutions Limited
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Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Unsecured
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the
due date
Considered good 6,067,334 7,054,948
Considered doubtful 64,661,168 65,034,840
Less: Provision for Doubtful debts 64,661,168 65,034,840
Sub total 6,067,334 7,054,948
Otherdebts
Considered good 190,024,359 157,747,032
TOTAL 196,091,693 164,801,980
2.16 Cashand Cash Equivalents
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 | March 31,2014
i) BalanceswithBanks
Currentaccount 313,236 74,636
ii) ChequesonHand 97,163 -
iii) CashonHand 8,652 31,528
TOTAL 419,051 106,164
2.17 Short Term Loans and Advances
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Unsecured - Considered good
a) OtherLoansandAdvances
i) AdvancelncomeTax (net of provision) 22,644,440 23,137,642
ii) Balances with Excise, Customs, VAT and Service Tax
input credit 5,486,013 4,521,213
iii) Deposits 1,870,500 1,643,500
iv) Advancestosuppliers - 372,871
v) Others 8,470,652 6,279,678
TOTAL 38,471,605 35,954,904
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2.18 Revenue From Operations

Particulars For the year ending | For the year ending
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Sale of Products 705,900,275 866,403,330
Sale of Services 372,924,205 350,327,710
OtherOperating Revenue 237,071 1,756,301
Sub Total 1,079,061,551 1,218,487,341
Less: Excise Duty 37,295,643 57,639,117
1,041,765,908 1,160,848,224
2.19 Otherincome
Particulars For the year ending | For the year ending
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Interest on Deposits with banks 595,946 212,749
Rentallncome 1,197,312 1,197,312
OtherInterest - 8,770,949
MiscellaneousIncome 3,529,105 -
TOTAL 5,322,363 10,181,010
2.20 Costof Material Consumed
Particulars For the year ending | For the year ending
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Opening Stocks 99,453,828 105,983,794
Add:Purchasesduringtheyear 327,177,049 401,917,885
Opening Stocks + Purchases 426,630,877 507,901,679
Less:Closingstocks 97,757,761 99,453,828
Sub Total 328,873,116 408,447,851
Less:-Capitalised duringtheyear - 8,893,774
Costofmaterial consumed 328,873,116 399,554,077

2.21 Purchase of Stockin Trade

Particulars For the year ending | For the year ending
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Purchases of stock-in-trade 357,680,944 283,292,111
Less:-Capitalised duringtheyear 67,065,334 56,013,616
TOTAL 290,615,610 227,278,495

WeP Solutions Limited
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2.22 ChangesinInventories of Workin Process, Finished Goods and Stock-in-trade

Particulars For the year ending | For the year ending
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Openingstock
Workin Process 6,811,267 9,759,349
Finished Goods 37,936,382 72,248,212
StockinTrade 69,013,245 71,870,361
Total 113,760,894 153,877,922
Closing Stock
Workin Process 12,719,705 6,811,267
Finished Goods 28,389,191 37,936,382
StockinTrade 85,592,621 69,013,245
Sub total 126,701,517 113,760,894
(12,940,624) 40,117,028

2.23 Employee Benefit Expenses

2.24

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

Particulars For the year ending | For the year ending
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Salariesand Wages 78,960,092 92,764,844
Contributionto providentand other fund 3,525,022 4,956,759
Staff welfare expenses 8,880,696 9,699,474
TOTAL 91,365,810 107,421,077
Finance Cost
Particulars For the year ending | For the year ending
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Interest Expenses 16,326,562 17,390,869
OtherBorrowingcosts 1,343,710 3,049,760
TOTAL 17,670,272 20,440,629
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2.25 Other expenses

Particulars For the year ending | For the year ending
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Powerandfuel 7,350,565 7,698,742
Insurance 944,675 1,039,342
Repairs &Maintenance 5,678,432 4,626,918
Rent 31,137,994 33,747,581
Rates and taxes 7,679,382 6,471,508
Warranty Expenses 3,505,505 10,782,172
Carriage and Freight outwards 33,533,846 29,962,354
Commissiononsales 20,072,077 19,129,911
SupportCharges 30,092,076 35,426,544
Auditors' Remuneration
- forAuditfees 325,000 325,000
- forTaxation matters 50,000 50,000
- forReimbursementofexpenses 60,018 123,631
- forOtherServices 40,000 75,000
Advertisementand sales promotion 10,324,502 7,054,896
Directors' Commission and Sitting fees 580,000 500,000
Lossondisposal of assets 820,559 841,096
Travellingand Conveyance 19,315,046 19,433,332
Communication Expenses 9,653,305 9,872,629
Legal and Professional charges 4,447,225 6,988,995
Manpower supportservice charges 42,676,463 41,356,221
Office Maintenance 4,759,442 8,102,899
Provisionfor Bad debts/advances (373,671) 12,224,834
Bad Debts Write off 3,572,466 -
Exchange Differences (Net) 4,286,204 13,510,964
Recruitment Expenses 753,180 1,713,543
Miscellaneous expenses 2,803,033 4,261,748

TOTAL 244,087,324 275,319,860

2.26 Details of disclosure asrequired by AS-29

Particulars Warranty Provision
OpeningBalanceasonApril1,2014 22,466,306
Additionsduringtheyear 19,766,626
Reversal 22,466,306
Closing Balance AsOn March 31,2015 19,766,626
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2.27 ChangeinAccounting Policy for Depreciation

In accordance with Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013, the company has reviewed the useful life of
allitsfixed assetsason April 1,2014

&na\’é

&
<&

Py e

e Tagh

a) Incaseofassetswherethereisareductionin useful life, the incremental depreciation arising out of
the reduced life as calculated upto March 31, 2014 has been adjusted in the retained earnings; the
consequent adjustmentto theretained earnings(net of deferred tax) is Rs. 94.3Lakhs

b) Incase of assets where thereisanincrease in useful life, the written down value of assets as on April
1, 2014 has been charged off over the revised remaining useful life of the assets. Consequently,
charge of depreciation to the Profit and Loss account is lower by Rs.50.8 Lakhs for the year ended

March 31,2015

2.28 Contingent Liabilities In Respect of:
a) Lettersof Credits opened by Banks for purchases of Spares and Consumables Rs. NIL (March 2015),
Rs.2,975,445(March2014).

b) Disputed demand for Excise, Customs, Income Tax, VAT and other matters Rs. 5,091,761
(March 2015),Rs. 5,517,452 (March2014).

2.29 SegmentReporting

The company's operation predominantly relate to Printer Business and Managed Printing Solutions
(MPS) Business. Accordingly the revenue from the said business comprise the primary basis of segment
information setout in this financial statement. The accounting principles consistently used for the
preparation of financial statements are also applied to record income and expenditure in individual
segment. These are set out on the note on significant accounting policies. Fixed Assets used in
companies business and liabilities contracted have beenidentified to the reportable segments.

A.Primary Segment Information

Particulars Printer Business MPS Business Total
Current Previous Current Previous Current Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year
Revenue
Net Sales / Income from
Operations 671,528,624 | 833,982,556 | 370,237,284| 326,865,668 | 1,041,765,908| 1,160,848,224
Less:- Intersegment Revenue - - - - - -
Segment Revenue 671,528,624 | 833,982,556 | 370,237,284 | 326,865,668 (1,041,765,908(1,160,848,224
Segment Result
Before Finance Cost and Tax (6,965,026) 29,967,041 47,015,230 | 18,688,507 40,050,204| 48,655,548
Less:- Finance Cost 17,670,272 20,440,629
Profit Before tax 22,379,932 28,214,919
Tax Expenses 6,570,465 7,337,852
Profit After Tax 15,809,467 20,877,067
Other Information
Segment Assets 403,276,943 403,302,655 341,061,848 | 294,167,345 744,338,790 697,470,000
Segment Liabilities 204,806,893 197,620,842 126,280,079 69,979,435 331,086,972 267,600,277
Capital Employed 198,470,050 | 205,681,813 | 214,781,769 | 224,187,910 | 413,251,819| 429,869,723
Capital Expenditure 5,120,826 | 111,863,273 68,329,310 | 66,074,804 73,450,136 177,938,077
Depreciation & Amortisation 6,300,644 9,437,496 58,736,186 63,245,653 65,036,830 72,683,149

Note: 1. Thereisno Secondary Segmentreporting as the geographical segment has not been identified.
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2.30 Related Party Transactions
2.30.1 Listofrelated parties

Name of Related Party Relationship

Ram Narayan Agarwal* Chairman &Managing Director

P K Gopalakrishnan™* ManagingDirector

BRGanesh Director

GHVisweswara Director

SudhirPrakash Director

Dr.ALRao Director

HVGowthama Director

Shankar Jaganathan Director

Mythily Ramesh Director

wep solutionsindia limited Promoter

WeP Peripherals Limited Promoter

*Appointed as Chairman & Managing Director w.e.f 16th February, 2015

**Managing Directortill 31st December, 2014

2.30.2 Transactions with Key Management Personnel
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Remuneration to P K Gopalakrishnan

(Managing Director)* 5,127,508 2,461,485

Contribution to PF and other funds 108,000 136,145

Remuneration to Ram N Agarwal

(Chairman & Managing Director)** 132,608 -

*Managing Director till 31st December, 2014

** Appointed as Chairman & Managing Director w.e.f 16th February, 2015

2.30.3 Transactionwith otherrelated parties

WeP Peripherals Ltd
Particulars For the year ended|For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Sale of Goods and Services 1,345,296 1,345,296
Purchase of Goods and Services 11,068,540 14,909,744
Interest Received - 8,770,949
Purchase of Immovable Property

- Land & Building - 107,489,672

2.31 Employee Benefit Plans

The Company providestoitsemployeesfollowing retirement benefits:

i) Gratuity
ii) LeaveAccrual

Gratuity: The Company provides gratuity benefit to the employees which is the defined benefit plan
andthe obligation ofthe companyis calculated on the basis of actuarial valuation.

WeP Solutions Limited
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Leave Accrual: The Company allows accumulation / encashment of leave. Such accumulation can be
utilized by obtaining leave in the subsequent period employment or encashment at the time of
separation. The obligation ason the balance sheet dateis provided on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Disclosure envisagedinrevised AS 15 inrespect of gratuity are given below:

Principal Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Expected Rate of Return on Assets (p.a) 0.00% 0.00%
Salary Escalation 7.00% 7.00%
DiscountRate 8.05% 9.00%
Amountrecognized in the Balance Sheet are as follows
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2015 | March 31,2014
Presentvalue of Funded Obligations 362,398 -
Fairvalue of plan assets - -
Presentvalue of unfunded obligations 4,036,025 4,501,842
Net Liability 4,398,423 4,501,842
Amountreflectedinthe P&L accountis as follows
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Current Service Cost 573,096 255,926
Interest on Defined Benefit Obligation 417,372 112,497
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
NetActuarial Losses/ (Gains) Recognised inyear (35,606) 149,955
Benefits Paid - -
Totalincludedin employee benefit - -
Expected Return on Plan assets - -
Total 954,862 518,378
Reconciliation of Benefit Obligation & Plan Assets for the Period
Particulars As at As at
March 31,2015 | March 31,2014
Changein Defined Benefit Obligation
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 4,501,842 5,760,033
Current Service Cost 573,096 255,926
Interest Cost 417,372 112,497
Actuarial Losses/ (Gain) (35,606) 149,955
(Benefit Paid) (1,058,281) (1,776,569)
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 4,398,423 4,501,842
Expected Employers Contribution Next Year 962,888 874,953
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2.32 Employee Stock Option Plan [ESOP]

The Company had implemented Employee Stock Option Plans as detailed below:

Particulars ESOP 2011
Optionsatthe beginning ofthe period (1stApril2014) 96,000
Options granted during the period 254,000
Price pershare 10
Pricing Policy FaceValue
Optionsvested 57,600
OptionsLapsed 45,000
Optionsavailable forexercise 30,600
Optionsexercised NIL
Totalnumberof shares arising as aresult of exercise of options NIL
Variations of terms of options NIL
Money realised by exercise of options NIL
Totalnumber of optionsinforce 305,000

2.33 Disclosures of dues /| payments to Micro, Small and Medium enterprises to the extent such

enterprises are identified by the company:

The Company has not received any intimation from the suppliers regarding the status under the Micro,
Smalland Medium Enterprises developmentAct, 2006 (the Act), hence disclosure regarding:

a. Amountdueanaccountofsuppliersasattheend ofthe accountingyear

b. InterestPaidduringtheyear;
c. Interestpayableattheendoftheyear;

d. Interestaccruedandunpaidattheend oftheaccountingyear;hasnotbeen provided.

The Company is making efforts to get the confirmation from the suppliers regarding their status under

theAct.

2.34 Additional Information Pursuant to the Provisions of Part Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act

2013.
a. ValueofIimportson CIF basis
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Raw Material, Stock-in-Trade and Spares & Consumables 297,990,549 338,248,826
b. ExpenditureinForeign Currency
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31,2014
Travelling 141,702 84,078
RepairCharges 2,988,710 3,565,886

76 WeP Solutions Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15




ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15

c. Material Consumption Details
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Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Indigenous-
Consumptionduringtheyear 175,708,721 246,709,233
% of total consumption 53% 62%
Imported-
Consumptionduringtheyear 153,164,395 152,844,844
% of total consumption 47% 38%
Total 328,873,116 399,554,077
d. EarninginForeign Currency
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
Exportof Goods - 7,715,654

2.35 EarningPer Share (EPS) computed in accordance with Accounting Standard 20.

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Basic
Profit/(Loss) aftertax as peraccounts 15,809,468 20,877,067
Number of Sharesissued (Weighted average no.) 23,003,472 23,003,472
Earning Per Share (of nominal value of equity share
of Rs.10/- each) 0.69 0.91
Diluted
Profit/(Loss) aftertax as peraccounts 15,809,468 20,877,067
Number of Sharesissued (Weighted averageno.) 23,084,395 23,013,335
Earning Per Share (of nominal value of equity share
of Rs.10/- each) 0.68 0.91

As per our report attached
For N M Raiji & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. : 108296W

Vinay D Balse
Partner
Membership No. : 39434

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 18,2015

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

HV Gowthama
Director

Sandeep Goyal
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Darjeeling
Date: May 18,2015

Ram N Agarwal
Chairman

Sujata Lele
Company Secretary
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Our Promise

We promise to be consistently proactive and perform
with integrity and speed at the cutting edge of technology
and innovation to deliver the consumer’s tech fantasy.

Our Values
" ¢ ’)
R
Co
PHOACT“'E H "‘ll'l'E‘;'.:lft
Attitude Behaviour

Like a pilot braving turbulence of the weather, we
proactively follow social and technological trends to
innovate consumer needs &desires.
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As the water lily blossom like clockwork in any environment,
we leverage the strengths of our varied businesses into a

converging focus through consistency with integrity,
upholdinghumanvalues.
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Delivery
With the precision energy and speed of a laser beam,
we innovate at the cutting-edge of technology to

surprise customers with friendly products and
services.

Like the fantasy of enjoying a strawberry, we deliver tech
fantasy into the customer’s mind to make our business robust,
sustainable and socially responsible.
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